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[Filing fee exempt, Gov. Code, § 6103] 

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA 

THE DEPARTMENT OF FAIR EMPLOYMENT) Case No. CV 12-1830-EMC 
AND HOUSING, an agency of the State of ) 
California, ) 

) SECOND AMENDED GROUP AND 
Plaintiff:) CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT FOR 

) DAMAGES AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF 
vs. ) 

) 
LAW SCHOOL ADMISSION COUNCIL, INC.,) [FEHA, Gov. Code, § 12900 et seq. and 
a Delaware tax exempt corporation, ) Unruh Civil Rights Act, Civ. Code, § 51 et 

) seq.] 
Defendant. ) 

~~~--------------------- ) 
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) Jury Trial Demanded 
JOHN DOE, JANE DOE, PETER ROE, ) 
RAYMOND BANKS, KEVIN COLLINS, ) 
RODNEY DECOMO-SCHMITT, ELIZABETH ) 
HENNESSEY-SEVERSON, OTILIA lOAN, ) 
ALEX JOHNSON, NICHOLAS JONES, ) 
CAROLINE LEE, ANDREW QUAN, STEPHEN) 
SEMOS, GAZELLE T ALESHPOUR, KEVIN ) 
VIELBAUM, AUSTIN WHITNEY, and all other) 
similarly situated individuals, ) 

Real Parties in Interest.~ 
) 
) 
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1 Plaintiff DEPARTMENT OF FAIR EMPLOYMENT AND HOUSING (Department or 

2 DFEH) alleges the following against defendant LAW SCHOOL ADMISSION COUNCIL, INC. 

3 (LSAC), a Delaware tax exempt Corporation: 

4 PARTIES 

5 I. DFEH is the state agency charged with enforcing the right of all Californians under 

6 the Unruh Civil Rights Act (Unruh Act) (Civ. Code, § 51 et seq.) "to the full and equal 

7 accommodations, advantages, facilities, privileges, or services in all business establishments of every 

8 kind whatsoever." (Civ. Code, § 51, subd. (a).) Government Code section 12948 makes a violation 

9 of the Unruh Act a violation of the Fair Housing and Employment Act (FEHA) (Gov. Code, § 12900 

10 et seq.). The FEHA empowers the DFEH to investigate and prosecute Unruh Act claims within the 

11 state, including those that adversely affect, in a similar manner, a group or class. (Gov. Code, §§ 

12 12961, 12965.) 

13 2. Each real party in interest, Jolm Doe, Jane Doe, Peter Roe, Raymond Banks, Kevin 

14 Collins, Rodney Decomo-Schmitt, Elizabeth Hennessey-Severson, Otilia loan, Alex Johnson, 

15 Nicholas Jones, Caroline Lee, Andrew Quan, Stephen Semos, Gazelle Taleshpour, Kevin Vielbaum, 

16 and Austin Whitney, applied to LSAC for reasonable accommodations on the Law School 

17 Admissions Test (LSAT) between January 19,2009 and the present. Each real party was denied a 

18 reasonable accommodation, either in whole or in part, within this same time frame. At the time of 

19 applying for reasonable accommodations, each real party resided in California. 

20 

21 
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3. Real parties in interest John Doe, Jane Doc, and Peter Roe wish to participate in this 

litigation anonymously. Each real party seeks to retain their privacy interest in the details of their 

disability and need for accommodation. Each of these real parties has expressed a legitimate fear of 

negative professional ramifications should their true names be associated with this litigation. A 

motion requesting the court's permission to proceed under fictitious names for these two real parties 

is filed concurrently with this complaint. 

II 

II 
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1 4. At all times relevant to this complaint, LSAC was a business establishment as defined 

2 by Civil Code section 51, subdivision (b). LSAC offers and administers its LSAT at multiple 

3 locations in the State of California several times a year. 

4 GROUP ACTION ALLEGATIONS 

5 

6 

7 

5. 

6. 

The DFEH brings this case on behalf of a group of 16 named individuals. 

CLASS ACTION ALLEGATIONS 

Class Definition: The DFEH also brings this case as a class action, on behalf of: all 

8 disabled individuals in the State ofCalifbrnia who requested a reasonable accommodation for the 

9 Law School Admission Test (LSAT) from January 19, 2009 to the present. The DFEH alleges that 

10 everyone within this class was subjected to LSAC's unlawful policies of discouraging requests for 

11 accommodation, requiring excessive documentation, and requesting unlawful information about 

12 mitigation measures. Within this class is a subclass of people who took the LSAT with the condition 

13 of extended time and were thereafter subjected to discriminatory treatment and retaliation because of 

14 this accommodation. These two classes are defined as follows: 

15 a. Unlawful Discouragement and Consideration of Mitigation Measures: All 

16 disabled individuals in the State of California who requested a reasonable accommodation for the 

17 LSAT from January 19,2009 to the present. 

18 b. Differential Treatment and Retaliation Against Examinees Granted Extended 

19 Time: All disabled individuals in the State of California who took the LSAT with the accommodation 

20 of extra time from January 19,2009 to the present. 

21 7. Class Representative: The Director of the DFEH, with the assistance of the 16 named 

22 real parties in interest, will fairly and adequately represent the class. Government Code section 12961 

23 authorizes the Director to pursue this litigation as a class representative. Section 12961 authorizes the 

24 DFEH to seek class relief without being certified as the class representative. Nonetheless, this lawsuit 

25 meets the criteria for class certification. 

* 
26 

27 
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8. Manageability: Class treatment of this dispute would save time and money by 

bringing all like claims before this court. For LSAC policies that affect a large group of applicants in 
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1 a similar fashion, such as subjecting applicants to unlawful inquiries and flagging certain scores, 

2 treatment as a class is a superior method of adjudication, as compared to multiple individual suits 

3 where each plaintiff would allege an identical harm. Class treatment would neatly aggregate these 

4 claims, preventing duplicative litigation and potential inconsistencies in the ultimate findings. 

5 9. Numerosity: The class is estimated to include hundreds ofLSAT applicants. It would 

6 be impracticable to join each of these applicants who requested reasonable accommodation during th 

7 three-year time frame and to bring them individually before the court for adjudication. The members 

8 of this class are fully ascertainable and there exists a probability that the individual members will 

9 ultimately be available to come forward to prove their separate damage-related claims to a portion of 

10 the total class recovery, if any. 

11 10. Commonality: There exists for the class a well-defined community of interest such 

12 that common questions of both law and fact predominate over individual interests or claims. 

13 11. Typicality: The class claims raised by the real parties in interest are typical of those 

14 held by other members of the class. Each applicant for reasonable accommodation was subject to an 

15 unlawful inquiry about mitigation measures, and each test-taker, who was granted extra time, had his 

16 or her test score segregated and flagged. 

17 12. Adequacy of Representation: With the assistance of the real parties in interest, the 

18 DEFH will fairly and adequately represent the interests of all members of the class in the adjudicatio 

19 of their similar legal claims. 

20 JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

21 13. The DFEH realleges and incorporates by reference each and every allegation 

22 contained in paragraphs I through 12, inclusive, as iffully set forth herein. 

23 14. This action arises under the FBI-lA, specifically Government Code section 12948, 

24 which incorporates the Unruh Act into the enforcement structure of the FEI-IA, giving the DFEH 

25 jurisdiction over Unruh Act violations occurring within the state. By virtue of its incorporation into 

26 the Unruh Act, a violation of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (ADA) (42 U.S.c. § 12101 

27 et seq.) also constitutes a violation of the Unruh Act. (Civ. Code, § 51, subd. (f).) 
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1 15. At all times relevant to this complaint, LSAC was a business establishment as defined 

2 by Civil Code section 51, subdivision (b). LSAC offers and administers its LSAT at multiple 

3 locations in the State of California several times a year. 

4 16. At all times relevant to this complaint, real parties in interest John Doe, Jane Doe, 

5 Peter Roe, RaymOJ)d Banks, Kevin Collins, Rodney Decomo-Schmitt, Elizabeth Hennessey-

6 Severson, Otilia loan, Alex Johnson, Nicholas Jones, Caroline Lee, Andrew Quan, Stephen Semos, 

7 Gazelle Taleshpour, Kevin Vielbaum, Austin Whitney, and all other similarly situated individuals, 

8 were "persons" within the meaning of Government Code section 12925, subdivision (d), and Civil 

9 Code section 51, subdivision (b). 

10 17. On May 9, 2010, Jane Doe filed a verified complaint of discrimination in writing with 

11 the Department pursuant to Government Code section 12960, alleging that LSAC unlawfully denied 

12 her full and equal access to the LSAT within the preceding one year, in violation of the FEHA and 

13 Unruh Act. A redacted copy of this complaint is attached hereto as Exhibit 1. 

14 18. On January 12, 2010, Nicholas Jones filed a verified complaint of discrimination in 

15 writing with the Department pursuant to Government Code section 12960, alleging that LSAC 

16 unlawfully denied him full and equal access to the LSA T within the preceding one year, in violation 

17 of the FEHA and Unruh Act. A true and correct copy of this complaint is attached hereto as Exhibit 

18 2. 

19 19. After receiving the complaints of Jane Doe and Mr. Jones, and beginning an 

20 investigation into their allegations, the Department came to believe that LSAC's policies and 

21 practices toward disabled applicants requesting reasonable accommodation were affecting a larger 

22 group or class of applicants in a similar manner. 

23 20. On July 22, 2010, the Department issued a document entitled "Notice of Class Action 

24 Complaint and Director's Complaint" describing the affected group or class as "all disabled 

25 individuals in the State of California who have or will request a reasonable accommodation for the 

26 Law School Admission Test (LSAT), administered by the LSAC, and who have or will be unlawfnlly 

27 
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1 denied such request from January 19, 2009 to the conclusion of the Department's investigation of this 

2 complaint" A redacted copy of this complaint is attached hereto as Exhibit 3, 

3 21. During its investigation of the class action and Director's complaint, the DFEH 

4 propounded administrative discovery to determine whether other people had been harmed by LSAC's 

5 discriminatory practices within the state, The DFEH's efforts to obtain this information from 

6 defendant included the filing of a superior court petition to compel LSAC to respond to its discovery 

7 requests, Although Government Code section 12960, subdivision (d), provides that the DFEH has 

8 one year from the date of the filing of its complaint until the filing of its accusation, this time is 

9 extended by the pendency of a court action to enforce administrative discovery, (Gov, Code, § 

10 12963,5, subd, (f),) Therefore, this action is timely filed, 

11 22, With the court's assistance, the DFEH was able to discover and notify other persons 

12 who were harmed by defendant's discriminatory practices, Some of these people elected to file 

13 individual complaints as follows, 

14 23, On August 29,2011, Alex Johnson filed a verified complaint of discrimination in 

15 writing with the Department pursuant to Government Code section 12960, alleging that LSAC 

16 unlawfully denied him full and equal access to the LSAT within the preceding one year, in violation 

17 of the FEHA and Unruh Act A true and correct copy of this complaint is attached hereto as Exhibit 

18 4, 

19 24, On August 31, 2011, John Doe filed a verified complaint of discrimination in writing 

20 with the Department pursuant to Government Code section 12960, alleging that LSAC unlawfully 

21 denied him full and equal access to the LSAT within thc preceding one year, in violation of the 

22 FEHA and Unruh Act A redacted copy of this complaint is attached hereto as Exhibit 5, 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 
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25, On September 26, 20 11, Elizabeth Hennessey-Severson filed a verified complaint of 

discrimination in writing with the Department pursuant to Government Code section 12960, alleging 

that LSAC unlawfully denied her full and equal access to the LSA T within the preceding one year, in 

violation of the FEHA and Unruh Act A true and correct copy of this complaint is attached hereto as 

Exhibit 6, 
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1 26. On October 3, 2011, Caroline Lee filed a verified complaint of discrimination in 

2 writing with the Department pursuant to Government Code section 12960, alleging that LSAC 

3 unlawfully denied her full and equal access to the LSAT within the preceding one year, in violation 

4 of the FEHA and Unruh Act. A true and correct copy of this complaint is attached hereto as Exhibit 

5 7. 

6 27. On October 6, 20 II, Raymond Banks filed a verified complaint of discrimination in 

7 writing with the Department pursuant to Government Code section 12960, alleging that LSAC 

8 unlawfully denied him full and equal access to the LSAT within the preceding one year, in violation 

9 of the FEHA and Unruh Act. A true and correct copy of this complaint is attached hereto as Exhibit 

10 8. 

11 28. On October 7, 2011, Gazelle Taleshpour filed a verified complaint of discrimination i 

12 writing with the Department pursuant to Government Code section 12960, alleging that LSAC 

13 unlawfully denied her full and equal access to the LSAT within the preceding one year, in violation 

14 of the FEHA and Unruh Act. A true and correct copy of this complaint is attached hereto as Exhibit 

15 9. 

16 29. On October 11, 2011, Peter Roe filed a verified complaint of discrimination in writing 

17 with the Department pursuant to section Government Code section 12960, alleging that LSAC 

18 unlawfully denied him full and equal access to the LSAT within the preceding one year, in violation 

19 of the FEHA and Unruh Act. A redacted copy ofthis complaint is attached hereto as Exhibit 10. 

20 30. On October 11, 20 11, Stephen Semos filed a verified complaint of discrimination in 

21 writing with the Department pursuant to section Government Code sectionl2960, alleging that LSAC 

22 unlawfully denied him full and equal access to the LSA T within the preceding one year, in violation 

23 of the FEHA and Unruh Act. A true and correct copy of this complaint is attached hereto as Exhibit 

24 11. 

25 

26 

27 
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31. On October 14, 2011, Rodney DeComo-Schmitt tlled a verified complaint of 

discrimination in writing with the Department pursuant to Government Code section 12960, alleging 

that LSAC unlawfully denied him full and equal access to the LSAT within the preceding one year, 
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* 

1 in violation of the FEHA and Unruh Act. A true and correct copy of this complaint is attached hereto 

2 as Exhibit 12. 

3 32. On October 17, 20 II, Andrew  filed a verified complaint of discrimination 

4 in writing with the Department pursuant to Government Code section 12960, alleging that LSAC 

5 unlawfully denied him full and equal access to the LSAT within the preceding one year, in violation 

6 of the FEHA and Unruh Act. A true and correct copy of this complaint is attached hereto as Exhibit 

7 13. Andrew  directly entered into a settlement agreement with LSAC. The DFEH is not a 

8 party to the settlement agreement between Andrew  and LSAC. 

9 33. On October 19, 20 II, Kevin Collins filed a verified complaint of discrimination in 

10 writing with the Department pursuant to Government Code section 12960, alleging that LSAC 

11 unlawfully denied him full and equal access to the LSAT within the preceding one year, in violation 

12 of the FEHA and Unruh Act. A true and correct copy of this complaint is attached hereto as Exhibit 

13 14. 

14 34. On October 24, 2011, Otilia loan filed a verified complaint of discrimination in 

15 writing with the Department pursuant to Government Code section 12960, alleging that LSAC 

16 unlawfully denied him full and equal access to the LSAT within the preceding one year, in violation 

17 of the FEHA and Unruh Act. A true and correct copy of'this complaint is attached hereto as Exhibit 

18 15. 

19 35. On October 28,2011, Andrew Quan tiled a verified complaint of discrimination in 

20 writing with the Department pursuant to Government Code section 12960, alleging that LSAC 

21 unlawfully denied him full and equal access to the LSAT within the preceding one year, in violation 

22 of the FEHA and Unruh Act. A true and correct copy of this complaint is attached hereto as Exhibit 

23 16. 

24 36. On October 28, 20 II, Austin Whitney tiled a verified complaint of discrimination in 

25 writing with the Department pursuant to Government Code section 12960, alleging that LSAC 

26 unlawfully denied him full and equal access to the LSAT within the preceding one year, in violation 

27 
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1 of the FEHA and Unruh Act. A true and correct copy of this complaint is attached hereto as Exhibit 

2 17. 

3 37. On November 7, 2011, Kevin Vielbaum filed a verified complaint of discrimination in 

4 writing with the Department pursuant to Government Code section 12960, alleging that LSAC 

5 unlawfully denied him full and equal access to the LSAT within the preceding one year, in violation 

6 of the FEHA and Unruh Act. A true and correct copy of this complaint is attached hereto as Exhibit 

7 18. 

8 38. On February 6, 2012, the DFEH issued a Group and Class Accusation before the 

9 California Fair Employment and Housing Commission (Commission), charging LSAC with 

10 violations of the Unruh Act. The Group and Class Accusation was properly served on LSAC by 

11 certified mail. 

12 39. On February 17, 2012, the DFEH issued a First Amended Group and Class Accusation 

13 before the Commission. This accusation was properly served on the LSAC by certified mail. 

14 40. Pursuant to Government Code section 12965, subdivision (c)(l), LSAC elected to 

15 have this dispute heard in civil court in lieu of a hearing before the Commission, and so notified the 

16 Department in writing, on or about February 22,2012. A true and correct copy of "Respondent's 

17 Notice of Transfer of Proceedings to Court" is attached hereto as Exhibit 19. 

18 41. The Department has withdrawn its accusation and has timely tiled this complaint 

19 pursuant to Government Code section 12965, subdivision (c)(2). 

20 42. The harm that is the subject of this complaint occurred throughout the State of 

21 California. Three of the real parties in interest lived in the County of Alameda at the time that they 

22 were denied full and equal accommodations in the testing process. 

23 43. The amount of damages sought by this complaint exceeds the minimum jurisdictional 

24 limits of this court. 

25 FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS 

26 The Law School Admissions Test (LSAT) 

27 
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1 44. The LSAT is a half-day, standardized test administered four times each year at 

2 designated testing centers throughout the State of California. It purports to provide a standard 

3 measure of acquired reading and verbal reasoning skills that law schools use to assess applicants. 

4 45. The test consists of five 35-minute sections of multiple-choice questions. A 35-minute 

5 writing sample is administered at the end of the test. Defendant does not score the writing sample, but 

6 sends it on to the law schools with the scores. 

7 46. The LSA T is designed to measure reading and comprehension skills, the ability to 

8 organize and manage information, and analytical skills such as evaluation and criticism. 

9 47. The three multiple-choice question types in the LSA T are labeled reading 

10 comprehension, analytical reasoning, and logical reasoning. All candidates take one additional 

11 multiple-choice section, which is experimental. 

12 LSAC Business within the State 

13 48. LSAC offers and administers its LSA T at multiple locations in the State of California 

14 four times a year, typically at law schools and universities. Applicants pay a test registration fee of 

15 $139 after creating an online account and filling out the online application form. Additional fees 

16 charged by LSAC include $68 for latc registration, $35 to change the tcst date, and so on. 

17 49. LSAC pays local proctors to administer the exam on site. LSAC also pays for 

18 accommodations at the site, such as readers or scribes. 

19 50. LSAC offers a Credential Assembly Service to law schools and law school applicants, 

20 which streamlines the law school admission process by allowing transcripts, recommendations and 

21 evaluations to be sent one time to LSAC. LSAC, in turn, summarizes and combines a law school 

22 applicant's LSA T score, writing samples, transcripts, recommendations, and evaluations into a report 

23 to an applicant's prospective law schools. The Credential Assembly Service also includes access 

24 through an applicant's LSAC account to electronic applications for all ABA-approved law schools. 

25 Applicants are charged $124 to register for the Credential Assembly Service and $16 for law school 

26 reports. 

27 
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1 51. LSAC provides a series of LSAT preparatory guides, mauuals and compilations of 

2 sample LSATs for purchase via its Web site, which materials range in price from $8 to $39.96. LSAC 

3 also sells a guide to ABA-approved law schools for $26 and a skill readiness inventory for $29.95. 

4 The LSAC Accommodation Request Process 

5 52. LSAC requires candidates requesting a reasonable accommodation to utilize its 

6 standard forms and procedures. Applicants making an accommodation request for a so-called 

7 cognitive or psychological impairment are required to provide psychoeducationall 

8 neuropsychological testing and a full diagnostic report, including comprehensive aptitude and 

9 achievement testing. 

10 53. LSAC requires each applicant to disclose whether he or she took prescribed 

11 medication during the evaluation process and to provide an explanation for auy failure or refusal to 

12 take the medication. 

13 54. LSAC has a policy whereby examinees who complete the LSA T under a disability-

14 related accommodation involving additional test timc receive a notation on their score report 

15 indicating that their exam scores were earned under non-standard time conditions. When reporting 

16 these LSA T scores to the law schools, defendant advises the schools that these examinees' scores 

17 "should be interpreted with great sensitivity and flexibility." 

18 55. In addition, scores from tests taken under extended time conditions are not averaged 

19 with other scores to produce a percentile ranking as are other test scores. Instead, extcnded time 

20 scores are reported individually. 

21 John Doc 

22 56. John Doe, a resident of Rancho Santa Fe (San Diego County), requested that 

23 defendant make accommodations for the December 20 10 LSAT at Saddleback College. 

24 

25 

26 

27 
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57. Mr. Doe was diagnosed with attention deficit disorder (ADD) at age 13. In addition, in 

2010 he became extremely ill with a bacterial infection and was hospitalized for approximately two 

months, spending several weeks in the Intensive Care Unit in a medically-induced coma. During this 

illness he suffered a severe brain edema, which left him with residual neurological impairments. 
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1 58. Mr. Doe requested time and a half (150 percent) on the multiple choice and writing 

2 sections for the December 2010 LSA T. 

3 59. In support of his request, Mr. Doe submitted medical documentation verifying his 

4 hospitalization, and a complete psychoeducational assessment, which reported multiple diagnoses: 

5 ADD, a learning disability (spelling), and a "[r]ecent bacterial infection with sustained induced coma 

6 and residual impairments." 

7 60. LSAC refused to grant Mr. Doe's requested accommodation and instead asked for "a 

8 detailed explanation regarding the nature, severity, treatment, and extent of [his] disorder at the 

9 present time and it [sic] impact on your ability to take the LSAT." 

10 61. Mr. Doe then submitted additional medical documentation indicating that he had 

11 "suffered a serious illness and developed marked weaknesses and encephalopathy. He continues to 

12 have fatigability and impaired concentration." His doctor recommended that Mr. Doe be granted 

13 increased time to complete the LSAT. 

14 62. LSAC then demanded that Mr. Doe's psychologist provide "a current update of [his] 

15 cognitive status" before making a decision on his accommodation request. 

16 63. Mr. Doe and his doctor disputed the need for an updated psychoeducational 

17 assessment just three months after the first report was completed. His doctor responded, "I would 

18 reiterate that Mr. Doe's intelligence is much as it was when he was originally seen (10/2611 0) and 

19 with IQ scores as noted in that report, all within the average range with the exception of Processing 

20 Speed (4th percentile)." 

21 64. LSAC granted Mr. Doe nine additional minutes for the multiple choice and writing 

22 sample sections (125 percent), with an additional 15 minutes of break time between sections three 

23 and four, for the February and June 2011 LSAT. 

24 Jane Doe 

* 

25 

26 

27 
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1 66. Ms. Doe has attention deficit disorder (ADD). Her condition makes it difficult to 

2 retain attention and focus, and significantly impairs her ability to conceptually organize and sequence 

3 abstract ideas. 

4 67. Ms. Doe requested that LSAC accommodate her with time and a half (150 percent) on 

5 the multiple choice and writing sample sections of the LSAT. 

6 68. In support of her request, Ms. Doe submitted medical documentation, verification that 

7 she had received the accommodation of time and a half (150 percent) as an undergraduate university 

8 student, and proof that she had received extended time (150 percent) on the Graduate Record Exam 

9 (GRE). 

10 69. On January 15,2010, LSAC denied Ms. Doc's accommodation requests, explaining 

11 that her documentation did not demonstrate that she had a disability, which affected her ability to tak 

12 the LSAT. 

13 70. Ms. Doe reapplied for accommodations on the June 20 I 0 LSA T, requesting the same 

14 accommodation of time and a half(150 percent) on the multiple choice atld writing sample sections. 

15 71. LSAC also denied this request. When Ms. Doe asked for an explanation for the denial, 

16 defendant replied in writing that it was "not obligated to provide accommodations that are not 

17 warranted 01' supported by the documentation." 

18 Peter Roc 

19 72. Peter Roe, a resident of San .lose (Santa Clara County), requested that defendant make 

20 accommodations for the September 2009 LSAT at California State University, East Bay. 

21 73. Mr. Roe has reading and math disorders, characterized by impaired auditory attention 

22 span ffild low visuomotor processing speed. These learning disorders substantially impact his ability 

23 to process written material, particularly under timed conditions. 

24 74. Mr. Roe requested 20 extra minutes for the multiple choice sections and 30 extra 

25 minutes for the writing sample section of the LSA T. He also requested a reader and permission to use 

26 a computer dictation program. 

27 
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1 75. In support of his request, Mr. Roe submitted a neuropsychological evaluation 

2 documenting his learning disabilities. 

3 76. LSAC denied Mr. Roe any accommodation, noting that he had neglected to submit a 

4 "timed reading comprehension measure" in conformance with LSAC's guidelines, he had no history 

5 of educational accommodation, and his test results demonstrated an "average range of functioning." 

6 77. Mr. Roe requested reconsideration of LSAC' s denial, submitting the results of an 

7 additional reading comprehension test that documented Mr. Roe's reading problems and 

8 recommended that he receive an accommodation of time and a half (150 percent). 

9 78. After reconsideration, LSAC stood by its previous decision to deny accommodation. 

10 Raymond Banks 

11 79. Raymond Banks, a resident of San Francisco (County of San Francisco), requested 

12 that defendant make accommodations for the February 2011 LSAT at San Francisco State University. 

13 80. Mr. Banks had a longstanding and severe injury to his shoulder muscle. As a result of 

14 this injury, Banks suffered from nerve damage, carpal tunnel syndrome, and chronic pain, all of 

15 which limited his ability to write. 

16 81. Mr. Banks requested five additional minutes to complete each multiple-choice test 

17 section of the LSAT, 10 additional minutes on the writing sample section, five-minute breaks 

18 between each test section, a large table to write on, and permission to wear a splint on his wrist. 

19 82. Real party Banks submitted medical documentation in support of his request, as well 

20 as proof that he had received accommodation as a student at the University of California, Berkeley 

21 for time and a half (150 percent) on all exams and quizzes. 

22 83. LSAC denied all ofMr. Banks' requests, other than permitting him to wear a hand 

23 splint "as a eourtesy." When Mr. Banks asked LSAC for an explanation of the denial, LSAC 

24 responded in writing that "[t]he documentation provided did not support your request for the 

25 additional accommodations you requested." 

26 Kevin Collins 

27 
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* 

1 84. Kevin Collins, a resident of Woodland Hills (Los Angeles County), requested that 

2 defendant make accommodations for the February 2011 LSAT at California State University, 

3 Northridge. 

4 85. Mr. Collins suffers from two learning disorders: disorder of written expression and a 

5 reading disorder. He has perceptual-organizational impairments, making it significantly more 

6 difficult for him to process simple or routine visual material without making errors, as compared to 

7 his peers. 

8 86. Collins requested the accommodations of double time on multiple choice and writing 

9 sample sections of the LSAT, pennission to use a computer and printer for the writing sample, and an 

10 alternative, non-Scantron answer sheet. 

11 87. In support of his request, Collins submitted proof that he had received time and a half 

12 (150 percent) on the GRE and for exams at Claremont Graduate University. He also submitted a full 

13 psychoeducational assessment report as requested by LSAC's guidelines. 

14 88. Defendant's tirst response was to ask for additional information and inform Collins 

15 that the deadline had passed for the February 2011 LSAT. Later, after Collins had submitted the 

16 requested information and requested consideration for the June exam, defendant granted him the 

17 accommodations of time and a half (150 percent) for the multiple choice and writing sample sections, 

18 rather than the double time that he had requested. The rest of his requested accommodations was 

19 granted. 

20 89. Collins asked LSAC to reconsider its decision to deny him double time. LSAC stood 

21 by its previous decision that time and a half was appropriate. 

22 Rodney DeComo-Schmitt 

23 90. Rodney DeComo-Schmitt, a resident of Marin County, requested that defendant make 

24 accommodations for the October 2010 LSAT offered at Sonoma State University. 

25 91. Mr. DeComo-Schmitt suffers from a reading disorder, causing a significant 

26 discrepancy between his verbal abilities and his visual-spatial abilities, especially under timed 

27 conditions. 
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1 92. Mr. DeComo-Schmitt requested time and a half (150 percent) on the multiple-choice 

2 sections of the exam, extra rest and break time, and permission to use a computer for the writing 

3 sample. 

4 93. In support of his request, Mr. DeComo-Schmitt submitted a thorough 

5 psychoeducational assessment and proof that he had received time and a half (150 percent) on his 

6 SAT exam. 

7 94. LSAC at first refused to consider Mr. DeComo-Schmitt's request for reconsideration, 

8 asserting that it had been submitted past the deadline for the October 2010 exam. Later, LSAC denied 

9 any accommodation to Mr. DeComo-Schmitt for the December 2010 exam, asserting that the 

10 documentation he had submitted did not demonstrate a limitation of a major life activity which 

11 affected his ability to take the LSA T. 

12 95. Mr. DeComo-Schmitt requested reconsideration ofLSAC's decision, submitting a 

13 letter from his psychologist contending that LSAC had misinterpreted the psychological testing. 

14 ot: 
JV. LSAC stood by its denial of accommodation, informing tv'lr. DeCollo-Schmitt that he 

15 was registered for the December 2010 LSAT as a standard test taker. 

16 Elizabeth Hennessey-Severson 

17 97. Elizabeth Hennessey-Severson, a resident of San Francisco (San Francisco County), 

18 requested that defendant make accommodations for the June 2011 LSAT at University of California, 

19 Hastings College of the Law. 

20 98. Ms. Hennessey-Severson has reading, written expression and mathematics disorders, 

21 and ADI-lD. These conditions impair her working memory and her ability to plan, organize, and 

22 devote sustained attention to language-based tasks, particularly reading. 

23 99. Ms. Hennessey-Severson requested that LSAC accommodate her on the LSA T with a 

24 minimum of time and a half(l50 percent) extra testing time, and by allowing her short breaks of 10 

25 to 15 minutes between sections of the exam. 

26 

27 
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1 100. In support of her request, Ms. Hennessey-Severson submitted psychoeducational 

2 assessment reports from 2002 and 2009. She also submitted proof that she had been accommodated 

3 with time and a half (150 percent) on the SAT, and while she was a student at Dartmouth College. 

4 101. Defendant denied all of Ms. Hennessey-Severson's requests for accommodation, 

5 contending that she scored in the "very superior" and "high average" range in her psychoeducational 

6 testing, and that her 2002 evaluation noted that she demonstrated a remarkable ability to compensate 

7 for her learning disabilities, such that she was able to take honors courses and play high school sports. 

8 102. Ms. Hennessey-Severson and her psychologist requested that LSAC reconsider its 

9 decision to deny accommodation. Her psychologist wrote: "It is my professional opinion based on all 

10 available evidence including comprehensive history, diagnostic interview, well established history of 

11 early diagnosis, remediation, and later accommodations throughout high school and college, that Ms. 

12 Hennessey has a standard learning disability that has a substantial impact on a major life function, 

13 namely, her ability to read, write, and calculate efficiently, and that extended time for formal testing 

14 is a reasonable accommodation for her disability." 

15 103. After reconsideration, LSAC stood by its prior decision to deny Ms. Hennessey-

16 Severson any accommodation. 

17 Otilia loan 

18 104. Otilia loan, a resident of San Jose (Santa Clara County), requested accommodation for 

19 the December 2010 LSAT offered at Santa Clara University. 

20 105. Ms. loan is quadriplegic. She is paralyzed in all four limbs and is unable to physically 

21 write without using a brace. 

22 106. Ms. loan requested that LSAC provide her with double time on all sections of the test, 

23 an alternate answer sheet, the use of a scribe, and an additional break of 30 minutes between sections 

24 3 and 4 of the test. 

25 

26 

27 
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1 108. LSAC asked Ms. loan to submit additional information from her doctor before it could 

2 consider her request for accommodation. LSAC wrote: "Your evaluator needs to provide detailed 

3 information regarding the nature, extent, severity, and treatmcnt of your disorder and its functional 

4 limitation on your ability to take the LSA T," defendant wrote. 

5 109. Ms. loan's doctor supplied the additional information that LSAC requested. 

6 110. Ms. loan wrote to LSAC requesting reconsideration of its decision to deny her double 

7 testing time. LSAC stood by its previous decision. 

8 Alex Johnson 

9 111. Alex Johnson, a resident of Lake San Marcos (San Diego County), requested 

10 accommodations for the October 2010 LSAT offered at the University of Southern California. 

11 112. Mr. Johnson is quadriplegic. I-Ie is unable to write or turn pages because his fingers ar 

12 paralyzed. He is unable to draw diagrams, underline text, or use a standard Scantron answer sheet. 

13 113. Mr. Johnson requested 15 minutes of extra break time between each section of the 

14 LSAT, and 120 additional minutes (more than triple time) on the multiple choice and writing sample 

15 sections. 

16 114. In support of his request, Mr. Johnson submitted medical documentation of his 

17 condition and need for accommodation, as well as verification from the University of Southern 

18 California that he had received double time on his exams while a student there. 

19 115. At first, LSAC refused to consider Mr. Johnson's accommodation request, because he 

20 was not registered to take the LSAT. Later, it granted Mr. Johnson time and a half (150 percent) on 

21 the multiple choice and writing sample sections, and 10 minutes of break time between each section. 

22 It agreed to provide Mr. Johnson with a scribe, and permitted him to use a computer for the writing 

23 sample. 

24 116. Mr. Johnson requested that LSAC reconsider his request for double time. His doctor 

25 wrote, "Double time is the least amount of time I should be allocated. It is also very hard to use a 

26 scribe because of time limitations." 

27 
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1 117. LSAC responded that it did not offer an untimed test, and that the documentation 

2 submitted did not support Johnson's request. 

3 Nicholas Jones 

4 118. Nicholas Jones, a resident of Palm Desert (Riverside County), requested that 

5 defendant provide him with an accommodation for the December 2009 LSAT offered at the 

6 University of Laverne (Ontario). 

7 119. Mr. Jones suffers from two distinct eye conditions. First, he has amblyopia or "lazy 

8 eye" in his left eye, whieh impairs his visual processing. Second, he has posterior vitreous 

9 detachments in his right eye, meaning that he has persistent f10aters or spots, which obstruct his field 

10 of vision. These conditions together impair Mr. Jones' reading speed and ability. 

11 120. Mr. Jones requested time and a half (150 percent) on the multiple choice and writing 

12 sample sections of the exam and five-minute breaks between each section. 

13 121. In support of his request, Mr. Jones submitted medical forms filled out by his doctor, 

14 an eye specialist. 

15 122. LSAC refused to provide any accommodation to Mr. Jones, informing him that "[t]he 

16 documentation provided did not ref1ect an impairment related to taking the Law School Admission 

17 Test." 

18 123. Mr. Jones requested that LSAC reconsider its decision denying him accommodations, 

19 and asked it to provide further explanation. Mr. Jones' doctor wrote a letter supporting his request for 

20 reconsideration, asserting that Jones' eye condition "substantially limits him in at least one major life 

21 activity, reading." 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 
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1 Caroline Lee 

2 125, Caroline Lee, a resident of Oakland (Alameda County), requested that defendant make 

3 accommodations for the December 20 I 0 LSA T offered in the City of Oakland, 

4 126, Ms, Lee suffers from ADHD and a reading disorder, causing her reading to be labored 

5 and excessively slow, and impairing her short-term memory. 

6 127, Ms, Lee requested time and a half (150 percent) on the LSAT multiple choice and 

7 writing sample, as well as extended breaks during the exam, a quiet testing environment, and the use 

8 of a laptop to compose all written work. 

9 128. In support of her request, Ms, Lee submitted proof that she had received extended 

10 testing time of 150 percent while a student at City College of San Francisco (CCSF) and that she had 

11 taken the SAT and ACT with accommodations, She also submitted a psychoeducational assessment 

12 that had been performed while she was a student at CCSF. 

13 129, LSAC replied in writing to Ms, Lee that she needed to submit additional 

14 documentation in order for her request to be considered, asking for: "[t]esting results and a full 

15 diagnostic report from a comprehensive up-to-date psychoeducational/ncuropsychological assessmen 

16 that comply with the Law School Admissions Council, Inc. Guidelines for Documentation of 

17 Cognitive Impairments." 

18 130, Ms, Lee then obtained and submitted a full psychoeducational evaluation in February 

19 20 II, which documented her ADHD and reading disorder. Her psychologist recommended that she 

20 receive 150 percent extended time, as well as the other previously requested accommodations, 

21 131, LSAC then requested that Ms. Lee submit several additional documents and reports, 

22 Ms. Lee did so. 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

132, In April 2011, defendant denied all of Ms. Lee's requested accommodations, 

informing her that: her performance on academic measures was commensurate with her ability, 

negating a finding of impairment; her documentation failed to support the diagnosis of an attention 

disorder; ,md her request for additional time on the writing sample was not considered because her 

psychologist had not administered the right tests, 
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1 133, Ms. Lee requested that LSAC reconsider its denial of accommodation. This request 

2 was accompanied by a letter from her psychologist, who contended that LSAC had misinterpreted the 

3 psychoeducational assessment. 

4 134. After reconsideration, LSAC stood by its initial decision to deny accommodations. 

5 Andrew Qllan 

6 135, Andrew Quan, a resident of Hayward (Alameda County), requested accommodation 

7 for the October 2011 LSAT offered at the University of California, Santa Cruz, 

8 136, Mr. Quan has ADHD, a visual-motor integration deficit with slow processing speed, 

9 hypotonia, and dysgraphia, 

10 137, Mr. Quan requested that LSAC provide him with the accommodations of double time 

11 on the multiple choice and writing sample portions of the exam, lO-minute breaks between each 

12 section of the test, and the use of a computer for the writing sample. 

13 138. In support of his request, Mr. Quan submitted to LSAC proof that he had been 

14 accommodated with the use of a computer on his ACT exams. He also submitted a 2008 

15 psycho educational assessment from high school, showing that Mr. Quan suffered from "significant 

16 deficits in visual-motor integration and fine motor skills," Included within that assessment was a 

17 2008 IEP documenting dysgraphia, attention deficit, visual processing, and sensory motor skills 

18 disorders which qualified him for special educational services, the use of a laptop computer, a scribe, 

19 and extra examination time, 

20 139. LSAC requested that Mr. Quan provide further documentation to support his request, 

21 including "testing results and a full diagnostic report from a comprehensive up-to-date 

22 psychoeducational/neuropsychological assessment that comply with [LSAC Guidelines]." 

23 140, Mr. Quan contested LSAC's need for additional documentation, asserting that it was 

24 unnecessary, unaffordable, and burdensome, 

25 

26 

27 
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1 Stephen Scmos 

2 142. Stephen Semos, a resident of Rancho Palos Verdes (Los Angeles County), requested 

3 that defendant make accommodations for the December 20 I 0 LSAT at Whittier Law School (Costa 

4 Mesa). 

5 143. Mr. Semos has ADHD and dsygraphia, which significantly impair his reading, writing, 

6 organization, and general academic performance. 

7 144. Mr. Semos requested time and a half (150 percent) on both the multiple-choice and 

8 writing sample portions of the exam, additional break time of five to eight minutes. 

9 145. In support of his request, Mr. Semos submitted proof that he had received: 

10 accommodations on the SAT; an IEP from the Palos Verdes Peninsula Unified School District 

11 identifying Mr. Semos as learning disabled; a letter verifying that he had received accommodations 

12 while a student at the University of California, Irvine, of time and a half (150 percent) on tests; and a 

13 complete psyclioeclucational assessment by his doctor, a neuropsychologist. 

14 146. LSAC's first response was to ask Mr. Semos to provide additional documentation in 

15 order to consider his accommodation request, including a full report of two particular tests for 

16 cognitive disabilities, the Nelson-Denny Reading Test (NDRT) and the Conner's Continuous 

17 Performance Test-II. LSAC also informed Mr. Semos that thc deadline for the December 2010 LSAT 

18 had passed, but that he could request accommodation for future exams. 

19 147. Mr. Semos then submitted his documentation for the February 2011 LSAT. 

20 148. In response, LSAC denied all ofMr. Semos' requests for accommodation on the basis 

21 that his test scores were generally commensurate with his abilities and thus did not demonstrate a 

22 learning disability. 

23 149. Mr. Semos' neuropsychologist requested that LSAC reconsider its denial. Mr. Semos' 

24 doctor wrote: "Your denial letter written to Mr. Semos selectively highlighted the above average 

25 scores and thereby masked the patterns of deficits in processing speed and fine Illotor speed noted in 

26 my neuropsychological report." 

27 
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1 ISO. LSAC responded that the letter from Mr. Semos' neuropsychologist had arrived too 

2 late to be considered for the February 20 II LSA T. LSAC wrote: "You remain registered to test as a 

3 standard test taker. No accommodations have been granted." 

4 Gazelle Taleshpour 

5 151. Gazelle Talcshpour, a resident of San Diego (San Diego County), requested that 

6 defendant make accommodations for the October 20 I 0 LSA T offered at the University of San Diego. 

7 152. Ms. Taleshpour has ADHD. She also suffers !i'om osteopenia (bone loss) and chronic 

8 pain in her neck and back as a result of treatment she had received for leukemia, a bone marrow 

9 transplant, radiation, and chemotherapy. 

10 153. Ms. Taleshpour requested that LSAC accommodate her with 30 extra minutes on the 

11 multiple choice and writing sample portions of the exam, breaks of two to five minutes every half 

12 hour so that she could stretch and alleviate pain, a high table, and a comfortable chair. 

13 154. In support of her request, Ms. Taleshpour submitted documentation from her treating 

14 medical doctor, her chiropractor, and her psychologist. She also provided LSAC with verification tha 

15 she had received time and a half (150 percent) on all tests and exams while a student at the University 

16 of San Diego. 

17 155. LSAC requested that Ms. Taleshpour provide additional documentation in support of 

18 her accommodation request, including "[tJesting results and a full diagnostic report from a 

19 psychoeducational/neuropsychological assessment that comply with Guidelines for Documentation 0 

20 Cognitive Impairments." 

21 156. Ms. Taleshpour obtained and submitted the additional documentation that LSAC 

22 requested. Her psychiatrist performed a full psychoeducational assessment, which diagnosed her with 

23 ADHD, a reading disorder, and a learning disability (dyslexia). Her psychiatrist supported Ms. 

24 Taleshpour's request for double time and other accommodations. 

25 

26 
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1 158. Ms. Taleshpour then resubmitted a request for accommodation for the December 2010 

2 LSA T: double time on multiple choice and writing sample; an alternate, non-Scantron answer sheet; 

3 use of a reader; an additional 15 minutes of rest time; and IS-minute breaks between sections. 

4 159. LSAC denied the request for additional accommodations beyond the two it had 

5 already granted, explaining to Ms. Taleshpour that her intelligence test scores were average and 

6 commensurate with her ability, meaning that no cognitive disability was apparent. 

7 160. Ms. Taleshpour requested that LSAC reconsider its denial of accommodation for extra 

8 time. Her psychologist supported the reconsideration request, contending that LSAC failed to 

9 recognize significant discrepancies in her reading speed and comprehension. "These significant 

10 difficulties provide psychometric evidence of the presence of a Learning Disability as described by 

11 the ADA," he wrote. 

12 161. LSAC stood by its prior decision to limit the accommodations made for Ms. 

13 Taleshpour: permission to sit or stand with a podium and to bring a seat cushion or an adjustable 

14 chair. 

IS Kevin Vielbaum 

16 162. Kevin Vielbaum, a resident of San Mateo (San Mateo County), requested that 

17 defendant make accommodations for him in taking the June 2011 LSAT at the University of 

18 California, Hastings College of the Law. 

19 163. Mr. Vielbaum has a reading disorder (dyslexia), characterized by a significant 

20 difficulties with perceptual reasoning, working memory, and cognitive processing speed. 

21 164. Mr. Vielbaum requested that defendant accommodate him with time and a half (150 

22 percent) on the multiple choice section of the LSAT, double time on the writing sample, and 

23 permission to use a computer for the writing sample. 

24 165. In support of his request, Mr. Vielbaum submitted extensive records from his primary 

25 education at a special school for students with dyslexia, where he was granted accommodations of 

26 extended time and the use of a laptop and calculator. 

27 
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1 166. LSAC granted Mr. Vielbaum only the accommodation of using a computer, printer 

2 and spell check for the writing sample. LSAC denied the accommodation of extra time, noting that 

3 Mr. Vielbaum had not requested accommodation on the SAT, and that he had scored well on the tests 

4 involved in his psychoeducational assessment. Defendant went on to explain that: "[y Jour evaluator 

5 notes you have difficulties with logical reasoning. Inasmuch as the Law School Admission Test is 

6 designed to measure these skills, the accommodations requested (extended time on all examinations 

7 that involve the solving oflogic problems), would not be appropriate." 

8 Austin Whitney 

9 167. Anstin Whitney, a resident of Contra Costa County, first reqnested accommodations 

10 for the September 2009 LSAT offered at San Diego State University. 

11 168. Mr. Whitney is paraplegic due to a spinal cord injury in 2007. 

12 169. Mr. Whitney requested that defendant accommodate his disability with time and a half 

13 (150 percent) on the multiple choice and writing sample sections of the LSAT, and a wheelchair 

14 accessible testing location. 

15 170. In support of his request, Mr. Whitney submitted medical records pertaining to his 

16 2007 injury, verification from the University of California at Berkeley that he had received time and 

17 half (150 percent) for all exams and quizzes during his undergraduate studies, and a form filled out 

18 by his doctor indicating that, because of his injury and surgeries, he suffered from "severe chronic 

] 9 pain and radiating radicular nerve pain" for which Whitney took prescription medication that caused 

20 drowsiness. 

21 171. LSAC responded that Mr. Whitney's request for accommodation had been submitted 

22 too late for the September 2009 test, and therefore he was registered as a standard test taker. 

23 172. Mr. Whitney next requested accommodations for the June 2010 LSA T offered in 

24 Berkeley at the California Ballroom. This time he requested that LSAC accommodate him with five-

25 minute breaks between sections, in addition to providing time and a half (150 percent) on the multipl 

26 choice and writing sample sections and a wheelchair accessible testing site. 
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1 173. In support of this request, Mr. Whitney submitted medical forms from four different 

2 doctors, each of whom supported his need for extra testing time. Dr. Larry Snyder explained: 

3 "Patient has significant fatigue due to medications taken for previous spinal injury - this will affect 

4 his performance in TIMED conditions." Dr. Carol Jessop wrote that, due to Mr. Whitney's spinal 

5 cord injury with chronic, nueropathic pain, he needed extra time to compensate for the effects of the 

6 pain medication which cause fatigue. Dr. Jessop explained: "This is a significant problem for Austin 

7 Whitney as he is taking medications ... that cause him to be sleepy and fatigued. This drowsiness 

8 makes him slower in his response to test questions. If an exam has a time limit, he will definitely 

9 need extra time to complete it." 

10 174. LSAC then granted Mr. Whitney the extra break time that he requested, and agreed to 

11 provide a wheelchair accessible testing site, but denied his request for extra testing time. "If you 

12 choose to have your cognitive disorder (alluded to by Carol Jessop, MD) considered," defendant 

13 wrote, "you must provide a CUITent psychoeducational/neuropsychological assessment or 

14 neuropsychological evaluation as per our Guidelines for Documentation of Cognitive Impainnents." 

15 175. Mr. Whitney asked defendant to reconsider its decision to deny additional testing time, 

16 and three of his doctors wrote to LSAC in support of his request. 

17 a. Dr. Snyder wrote, "His pain and spacticity are a constant distraction and put 

18 him at a significant disadvantage as a test taker. In addition, the medication he is taking causes 

19 significant fatigue and makes it difficult to concentrate. The medication side effects do not impair 

20 cognition but can slow processing speed. For these reasons, he should be afforded extra time when 

21 taking this standardized test." 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

* COURT PAPER 
State Qf California 
5td.113 Row. 3_95 
FE&H Automated 

b. Dr. Jessop wrote, "I would like to emphasize that the nature ofMr. Whitney's 

condition is physiological (pain issues) and NOT cognitive or due to a learning disorder. Our request 

for extra time on the exam is based solely on physiological clIccts of chronic, severe neuropathic 

pain, and the fatiguing side effects of pharmaceutical pain killers. Thus, because he doesn't have a 

learning disability, I feel strongly that neuropsychological or psychoeducational testing would be 

irrelevant in his case." 
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1 c. Dr. Hedelman wrote, "Patient's significant impacts on concentration, reading, 

2 writing, ability to attend class is secondary to his unpredictable, severe ncuropathic pain and the 

3 associated pain management medications. Patient does not have an underlying cognitive impairment 

4 requiring neuropsych[ological] testing." 

5 176. LSAC refused to reconsider its decision, responding: "Wc have no objective evidence 

6 to support Dr. Carol Jessop, MD's conclusion that your thought processes are not as fast as they 

7 could be without medication." 

8 177. In 2011, at LSAC's behest, Mr. Whitney was evaluated by a psychologist, who 

9 determined that he required double time on examinations due to the effect that his pain medication 

10 was having on his cognitive abilities. 

11 178. In response to a second accommodation request by Mr. Whitney with the 

12 psychologist's report as supporting documentation, LSAC awarded him 10 additional minutes on 

13 each section of the exam. LSAC provided no rationale for denying his request for double time. 

14 FIRST CLASS CAUSE OF ACTIOl',j 

15 Unlawful Consideration of Mitigation Measures 

16 (42 U.S.c. § 12102(4)(E)(1)(i)(I» 

17 179. The DFEH realleges and incorporates by reference each and every allegation 

18 contained in paragraphs 1 through 184, inclusive, as if fully set forth herein. 

19 180. The ADA, 42 U.S.C. § 12102(4)(E)(l)(i)(l), requires that "any determination of 

20 whether an impairment substantially limits a major life activity shall be made without regard to the 

21 ameliorative effects of mitigating measures such as medication." The ADA is incorporated into the 

22 Unruh Act by Civil Code section 51, subdivision (f). 

23 181. By requiring applicants to take the medication prescribed for their disabilities while 

24 being evaluated for accommodations or explain their failure or refusal to do so, LSAC violates the 

25 rights of class members under the FEHA, Unruh Act, and ADA, 

26 
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1 182. As a direct result of the unlawful practices of defendants as alleged herein, class 

2 members have incurred out of pocket losses, including tcst registration fees and medical bills, in an 

3 amount to be proven at trial. 

4 183. As a further and direct resnlt of the unlawful practices of defendants as alleged herein, 

5 class members have suffered emotional distress, anxiety, lost opportunity, frustration, humiliation, 

6 and loss of dignity and self-esteem, in an amount to be proven at trial. 

7 184. Defendants have engaged in, and by their refusal to comply with the law, have 

8 demonstrated that they will continue to engage in, the pattern and practice of unlawful discrimination 

9 described herein unless and until they aTe enjoined, pursuant to the police power granted by 

10 Government Code sections 12920 and 12920.5, and pursuant to section 12974, from failing or 

11 refusing to comply with the mandates of the FEI-lA, Unruh Act, and the ADA. Unless and until 

12 defendants are enjoined from failing or refusing to comply with the mandates of these laws, class 

13 members' right to full and equal access to places of public accommodation will continue to be 

14 violated. Plaintiff lacks any plain, speedy, adequate remedy at law (0 prevent such harm, injury and 

15 loss, which will continue until the court enjoins the complained of unlawful conduct and grants other 

16 affirmative relief as prayed for herein. 

17 SECOND CLASS CAUSE OF ACTION 

18 Failure to Ensure that Exam Measures Ability Rather than Disability 

19 (42 U.S.c. § 12189 and 28 C.F.R. § 36.309) 

20 185. The DFEI-l realleges and incorporates by reference each and every allegation 

21 contained in paragraphs 1 through 184, inclusive, as iffully set forth herein. 
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186. The ADA requires that any person offering examinations related to post-secondary 

education or profession "shall offer such examinations or conrses in a place and manner accessible to 

persons with disabilities." (42 U.S.c. § 12189.) Regulations interpreting this section impose an 

obligation on the entity offering such an examination that" [t]he examination is selected and 

administered so as to best ensure that, when the examination is administered to an individual with a 

disability that impairs sensory, manual, or speaking skills, the examination results accurately reflect 
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1 the individual's aptitude or achievement level or whatever other factor the examination purports to 

2 measure, rather than reflecting the individual's impaired sensory, manual, or speaking skills." (28 

3 C.P.R. § 36.309.) 

4 187. By adhering to a blanket policy of annotating scores taken under extended time 

5 conditions, defendant is communicating to law schools that it does not know whether or not the 

6 applicants' exam results accurately reflect aptitude or achievement. Therefore, LSAC is breaching its 

7 duty under the PEHA, Unruh Act, and ADA to ensure that the examination results accurately reflect 

8 the individual's aptitude or achievement level. (28 C.F.R. § 36.309(b)(I)(i).) 

9 188. As a direct result of the unlawful practices of defendants as alleged herein, class 

10 members have incurred out of pocket losses, including test registration fees and medical bills, in an 

11 amount to be proven at trial. 

12 189. As a further and direct result of the unlawful practices of defendants as alleged herein, 

13 class members have suffered emotional distress, anxiety, lost opportunity, frustration, humiliation, 

14 and loss of dignity and self-esteem, in an amount to be proven at trial. 

15 190. Defendants have engaged in, and by their refusal to comply with the law, have 

16 demonstrated that they will continue to engage in, the pattern and practice of unlawful discrimination 

17 described herein unless and until they are enjoined, pursuant to the police power granted by 

18 Government Code sections 12920 and 12920.5, and pursuant to section 12974, from failing or 

19 refusing to comply with the mandates of the FEHA, Unruh Act, and the ADA. Unless and until 

20 defendants are enjoined from failing or refusing to comply with the mandates of these laws, class 

21 members' right to full and equal access to places of public accommodation will continue to be 

22 violated. Plaintiff lacks any plain, speedy, adequate remedy at law to prevent such harm, injury and 

23 loss, which will continue until the court enjoins the complained of unlawful condnct and grants other 

24 affirmative relief as prayed for herein. 

25 

26 
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1 THIRD CLASS CAUSE OF ACTION 

2 Coercion, Intimidation, Threats, or Interference with ADA Rights - Flagging 

3 (42 U,S.c. § 12203) 

4 191. The DFEH realleges and incorporates by reference each and every allegation 

5 contained in paragraphs 1 through 184, inclusive, as iffully set forth herein. 

6 192. The ADA makes it unlawful to "coerce, intimidate, threaten, or interfere with any 

7 individual in the exercise or enjoyment of, or on account of his or her having exercised or enjoyed, 

8 any right granted or protected by this Act." (42 U.S.C. § 12203.) 

9 193. LSAC's policy of annotating tests scores administered under extended time conditions 

10 discourages applicants from seeking such an accommodation, and punishes those who receive it, in 

11 violation of the FEHA, Unruh Act, and ADA. 

12 194. As a direct result of the unlawful practices of defendants as alleged herein, class 

13 members have incurred out of pocket losses, including test registration fees and medical bills, in an 

14 amount to be proven at trial. 

15 195. As a further and direct result of the unlawful practices of defendants as alleged herein, 

16 class members have suffered emotional distress, anxiety, lost opportunity, frustration, humiliation, 

17 and loss of dignity and self-esteem, in an amount to be proven at trial. 

18 
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196. Defendants have engaged in, and by their refusal to comply with the law, have 

demonstrated that they will continue to engage in, the pattern and practice of unlawful discrimination 

described herein unless and until they are enjoined, pursuant to the police power granted by 

Government Code sections 12920 and 12920.5, and pursuant to section 12974, from failing or 

refusing to comply with the mandates of the FEHA, Unruh Act, and the ADA. Unless and until 

defendants are enjoined from failing or refusing to comply with the mandates of these laws, class 

members' right to full and equal access to places of public accommodation will continue to be 

violated. Plaintifflacks any plain, speedy, adequate remedy at law to prevent such harm, injury and 

loss, which will continue until the court enjoins the complained of unlawful conduct and grants other 

affirmative relief as prayed for herein. 
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1 FOURTH CAUSE OF ACTION - REAL PARTIES IN INTEREST ONLY 

2 Denial of Reasonable Accommodation 

3 (42 U.S.c. § 12189 and 28 C.F.R. § 36.309(b)(1)(iv» 

4 197. The DFEH realleges and incorporates by reference eaeh and every allegation 

5 contained in paragraphs 1 through 184, inclusive, as if fully set forth herein. 

6 198. The ADA requires that any person offering examinations related to post-secondary 

7 education or profession "shall offer such examinations or COurses in a place and manner accessible to 

8 persons with disabilities." (42 U.S.C. § 12189.) As part of this duty to make an examination 

9 accessible, the regulations require that any documentation requested be "reasonable and limited to the 

10 need for the modification, accommodation, or auxiliary aid Of service requested." (28 C.F.R. § 

11 36.309(b)(1 )(iv).) 

12 199. LSAC breached its duty to make the LSAT accessible to people with disabilities by 

13 requiring excessive amounts of documentation and denying a reasonable accommodation to each real 

14 party in interest, in violation of the FEHA, Unruh Act, and ADA. 

15 200. As a direct result of the unlawful practices of defendants as alleged herein, real parties 

16 have incurred out of pocket losses, inclnding test registration fees and medical bills, in an amount to 

17 be proven at trial. 

18 201. As a further and direct result of the unlawful practices of defendants as alleged herein, 

19 real parties have suffered emotional distress, anxiety, lost opportunity, frustration, humiliation, and 

20 loss of dignity and self-esteem, in an amount to be proven at trial. 

21 202. Defendants have engaged in, and by their refusal to comply with the law, have 
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demonstrated that they will continue to engage in, the pattern and practice of unlawful discrimination 

described herein unless and until they are enjoined, pursuant to the police power granted by sections 

12920 and 12920.5, and pursuant to section 12974, from failing or refusing to comply with the 

mandates of the FEHA, Unruh Act, and the ADA. Unless and until defendants are enjoined from 

failing or retusing to comply with the mandates of these laws, class members' right to full and equal 

access to places of public accommodation will continue to be violated. Plaintifflacks any plain, 
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1 speedy, adequate remedy at law to prevent such harm, injury and loss, which will continue until the 

2 court enjoins the complained of unlawful conduct and grants other affirmative relief as prayed for 

3 herein. 

4 FIFTH CAUSE OF ACTION REAL PARnES IN INTEREST ONLY 

5 Coercion, Intimidation, Threats, or Interference with ADA Rights 

6 (42 U.S.c. § 12203) 

7 203. The DFEH realleges and incorporates by reference each and every allegation 

8 contained in paragraphs 1 through 184, inclusive, as if fully set forth herein. 

9 204. The ADA makes it unlawful to "coerce, intimidate, threaten, or interfere with any 

10 individual in the exercise or enjoyment of, or on account of his or her having exercised or enjoyed, 

H any right granted or protected by this Act." (42 U.S.c. § 12203.) 

12 205. LSAC's policies and patterns of requiring unreasonable types and excessive amounts 

13 of documentation to support each accommodation request violate the FEHA, Unruh Act, and the 

14 fo .. Dft. ... , by uIl1awftllly coercing, intimidating, threatening, or interfering \vith real parties' exercise or 

15 enjoyment of their right to reasonable accommodation on the LSAT. 

16 206. As a direct result of the unlawful practices of defendants as alleged herein, real parties 

17 have incurred out of pocket losses, including test registration fees and medical bills, in an amount to 

18 be proven at trial. 

19 207. As a further and direct result of the unlawful practices of defendants as alleged herein, 

20 real parties have suffered emotional distress, anxiety, lost opportunity, frustration, humiliation, and 

21 loss of dignity and self-esteem, in an amount to be proven at trial. 
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208. Defendants have engaged in, and by their refusal to comply with the law, have 

demonstrated that they will continue to engage in, the pattern and practice of unlawful discrimination 

described herein unless and until they are enjoined, pursuant to the police power granted by 

Govemment Code sections 12920 and 12920.5, and pursuant to section 12974, from failing or 

refusing to comply with the mandates of the FEHA, Unruh Act, and the ADA. Unless and until 

defendants are enjoined from failing or refusing to comply with the mandates of these laws, class 
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1 members' right to full and equal access to places of public accommodation will continue to be 

2 violated_ Plaintifflacks any plain, speedy, adequate remedy at law to prevent such harm, injury and 

3 loss, which will continue until the court enjoins the complained of unlawful conduct and grants other 

4 affirmative relief as prayed for herein. 

5 PRAYER FOR RELIEF 

6 WHEREFORE, the DFEH prays that the court issue a judgment in favor of the DFEH, real 

7 parties in interest, and members of the class, and order defendants to provide the following relief: 

8 AS TO REAL PARTIES IN INTEREST 

9 209. Provide free and accommodated testing at the next available testing date in each real 

10 party's area, with accommodations as initially requested by that real party; 

11 210. Provide a letter to each real party explaining that their LSAT scores used for their law 

12 school applications during the relevant period may not have provided accurate measures of their 

13 acquired reading and verbal reasoning skills, because LSAC did not reasonably accommodate their 

14 disabilities. 

15 AS TO ALL MEMBERS O};' THE CLASS, 
INCLUDING THE REAL I'ARTIES IN INTEREST 

16 

17 211. Cease and desist from consideration of mitigation measures such as medication when 

18 making a determination as to whether an applicant needs an accommodation. 

19 212. Cease and desist from specially annotating LSAT scores tests scores administered 

20 under extended time conditions. 

21 213. Include all test scores in the percentile ranking process and provide a ranked percentile 

22 to each test taker. 

23 214. Immediately undertake a validation study to determine if LSAC scores under 

24 accommodation of extra time for cognitive disabilities are an equal measure of aptitude or 

25 achievement as compared to non-accommodated scores. 

26 215. Reduce to a discrete and reasonable amount the documentation required to verify an 

27 applicant's need for an accommodation, especially for so-called cognitive disabilities, consistent with 
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1 the ADA's requirement that such documentation be "reasonable" and Congress' mandate that "the 

2 question of whether an individual's impairment is a disability under the ADA should not demand 

3 extensive analysis." (28 C.F.R. § 36.309(b)(l)(iv); 42 U.S.c. § 1201 [Pub. L. No. 110-325, § 2(b)(5) 

4 (Sept. 25, 2008) 122 Stat. 3553].) 

5 216. Create a more streamlined and user-friendly process for considering reasonable 

6 accommodation requests, that includes notice to applicants, within a reasonable period of time, 

7 whether or not requested accommodations have been granted, and provides a fair process for timely 

8 reconsideration of any denial of requested accommodations. 

9 217. Pay actual damages according to proof for each Unruh Act violation up to a maximum 

10 of three times the actual damages but in no case less than $4,000 per violation. 

11 218. Pay the DFEH's attorneys' fees and costs, pursuant to California Government Code 

12 § 12965(b) and California Civil Code § 52(a), in an amount according to proof, plus annual interest, 

13 as required by law. 

14 219. Provide written proof to the Department of the nature and extent ofLSAC's 

15 compliance with all requirements of the court's order within 100 days of its effective date; and, 

16 220. Provide such other relief as the Court deems to be just and proper. 

17 Dated: March 12,2013 

18 
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DEPARTMENT OF FAIR EMPLOYMENT 
AND HOUSING 

Jon M. lchinaga 
Chief Counsel 

R. Sybil Villanueva 
Associate Chief Counsel 

Phoebe P. Liu 
Senior Staff Counsel 

Mari Mayeda 
Senior Staff Counsel 

By:/sl R. Sybil Villanueva 
R. Sybil Villanueva 
Attorneys for the Department 
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'* .* ii' PUBLIC ACCOMMU '\ nOIll!RAlPH/CIVIL CpOE S nO~lS 51.5 & 54 t· * ~. 

COMPLAINT OF mSGRIMINATIOi1J UNDER THE DFEH # U200910-Q-0003 -00 
I'ROVISlONg OFTHE CAUFORI1J[A FAIR EMPU1YMEI\lT '-~-
AI\JD HOUSING ACT WfHCH PORATES THE UNRUH CIVIL 
fliGHTS ACt, THE' ACT AlliD CIVil CODE SECTIONS 51 54 

NAME(SI 

LAW SCHOOL ADMISSIONS CbUNCIL 
ADDRESS 

p,O, Box 8512 
CITY ISTATE(ZIP 

Newtown, PA 18940 
CAUSE OF DISCRIMII,ATION BASED ON {CHECK APPROPRIATE BOX[ESIl 

ODATIOI\l OR OTHER 

TELEPHONE NUMBER (H-JCLUDE AREA CODE) 

(215) ~6e"1001 
COUNTY 

o RACE OSEX 0 DISABILITY 0 RELIGION 0 NATIONAL ORIGIN/ANCESTRY o SF.l<UAL ORIENTATION 
o COLOR D AGE D MARITAL S1'ATUS 0 OTHER {SPECIFYI 

DATE MOST RECENT OR CONTINUiNG DlSCRIMINAT!ON TYPE OF COMPLA1NT 

TOOK PLACE {month, day, and yearl A.:.'p::.:.l'::.il..::2::..1:c.',_~2::..0::..1.:..0=--~ _______ ~ _______ ,.::8::-___ -,-
THE PARTICULAliS ARE: 

!. On or about April 21, 2010, I was denied my reasonable acCommodation request for 50%',exlratesting 
time when taking my LSAT exam for the Law School Admissions Council which is located at P,O. Box 
8512, Nevvtown, PA 18940, 

Ii. 1 believe I was denied my reasonable accommodation request for 50% extra testing tin1e when taking 
my LSAT exam which is necessary due to my disability (Attention Deficit Disorder) which is a violation 
Government Code, Section 12948. The Gdvei'nment Code incorporates Section 51 of the Civil Code," 
My belief is based on the following: , 

A Corporate Council, Joan Vah Tol, was aware of my disability and the granting of my 
accommodation request for 50% additional testing time for a prior test date. However, after I 
requested an accommodation for 50% additional testing time forthe June 6,2010 exam, my 
request was denied. 

i 

Typed aM mailed for signature on May 4, 2010, 
j declare under penalty of perjury under the !aws- of the State of California. that the foregoing is true and correct of my own 
knowledge except as to matters stated on my matters! believe it to be true. 

City 

DFEH·300·02 (12/99) Q:DS:bps DATE FILED: 
OEPARTMENT OF FAIR EMPLOYMENT A'ND HOUSING 8T ATE OF CALlFC 
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* * * PUBLIC ACCOMM ;ATION/lH\lPH!C,!Vll CODE, _CTIOruS 51.5 & 54 * * * 

COMPLAINT OF DISCRIMINATION UNDER THE DFEH II E .. 2009l.0-G-0012-~ ... __ 
PBOVISIOruS OF THE CALIFORNIA FAIR EMPLOYMENT 
AND HOUS!NG ACT WHICH INCORPORATES THE UNRUH CIVIL 
RIGHTS ACT, THE RALPH CIVil RIGHTS ACT AND CIVil CODE SECTIONS 51.5 AND 54 
COMPLAINANT'S NAME{S) (indicate Mr. or Ms" jf individual) 

Jones, Nicholas E, (Mrc..) _____ ._ .. _ ... _____ . ___ . _____ .... ===~ 
ADDRL:SS TELEPHONE NUMBEFl. (INCLUOE: AREA'-C()[;[J-"-~' 

73213 Catalina Way (760) 409·9103 
CiiV/S':l:AT"E'i"Zjp- . ·COUNTY--'""'·- couN"'rv CO"[')E'---

Palm Desert, ca 92260 Riverside 065 
Nil."Nifo-fS THE PERSON, BUSINESS ESTABLISHMENT, PUBLIC ACCOM~lODA TlONCJlfOTHIRf.flJTlTYTHA f-­
DISCRIMINATED AGAINST ME: 

Law School Adm issions ...;:C:.;;o:.;;l:.;.ln;.:;c",il"", . .;.In'''c;:.,.:....::;1 L::...S",A __ C:..:.,I _________ .~=======""" 
ADDRESS TELEPHONE NUMBER (INCLUDE AREA'CODE)-

Post Office Box 8512 ______ 215 .. 968-1 001 
CITY ;ST A TE/ZlP co\if\lTY ·-----cotr~I-TYC06~~ 

Newton, PA 18940-8512 Out-ol·State 000 
'cAusE-oF DISCRIM!NATION BASED ON (CHECK APPROPRIATE BQXiESll ~-,---.~~~--,-"--,-.-----.--.. --- .. _._.-_ ... 

DRACE OSEX rn DiSABILITY 0 RELIGION 0 NATiONAL QRIG1NJ/\NCESTRY 0 SEY,Uft.L OHIHlTATION 
o COLOR 0 AGE 0 MARITAL STATUS 0 OTHER (SPE.C",':.:FY",,' ~ 

DATE MOST HE CENT OR CONTINUIN·G DISCRIMiNATION 

THE 

TYPE OF COMPLAINT 

December 2009 

I. On or about December 5, 2009 I was denied reasonable accommodation to take the LSAT 
test for the Law School Admissions Council. 

II. On or about October 27, 2009 and November 9, 2009 I received notification my request for 
reasonable accommodation had been denied. 

III. I believe I was denied reasonable accommodation because of my disabilities 
(Amblyopia/Posterior Vitreous Detachment) and because of my membership in a class of 
people who are disabled. This is a violation of Section 12948 of the Government Code, The 
Government Code incorporates Section 51 of the Civil Code. My belief is based on the 
foUo\oving; 

A. On or about October 20, 2009 I requested a reasonable accommodation to take the LSAT 
test scheduled for December 5, 2009. 

8. On or about October 27, 2009 I received notification the documentation I provided did not 
reflect an impairment related to taking the LSAT and I remained registered to test as a 
standard test taker. 

C. On or about November 3, 2009 I requested reconsideration regarding my accommodation 
request by providing additional information requested by LSAC to justify my need for 
reasonable accommodation, 

Pg, 1 of 2 
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" '* " PUBLIC ACCOMIV, JATIONIRA~PHmIVIL CODE 2CTION 54 * * * 

COMPLAINT OF DlSCRIMfNATlOru UI\lDER THE DFEH # U 20091 0 ~ 0012 00 
PROVISJOruS OF THE CAlIFORNIA FAIR EMPLOYMEI\lT T - _____ "':,,= ____ =._.:::12_ 

AND HOUSING ACT WmCH INCORPORATES THE UNRUH CIVil 
RIGHTS ACT, THE RALPH CiVil RiGHTS ACT AND CIVIL CODE SECTIONS 51.5 AND 54 
-~ ."---.--.-"------,,~.-,~ .. -------~-~-.--.--... 
COMPLAINANT' 

Nicholas E. (Mr.) 

Law School Admissions Counoi[, ino. (LSAC) 

D. On or about November 9, 2009 I received notification the additional documentation was 
reviewed and there was no change in their decision and my request for reasonable 
accommodation was denied. 

IV.! am making this complaint on behalf of myself and all other disabled individuals, who have 
been, are now, or will in the future be sim[lar[y aggrieved. 

Pg. 2 of 2 

Typed and mailed for signature on JarJll"r'{.l!"_~Q:l.o,.iM~ :2L2ill1'._~ .. ______ _ 
i declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregomg h;, true and correct of my own knowledge 

exceo! as to matters stated on my information and b~~"Sln'i')tte,s I believe ,,'to be','I:;U~'" , 

Dated / l;L(h~ ~~> _ ~ftk."'~~_E.1~S -.l.j.!. I ~_ _, COMPLAINANT'S SIGNATURE 

At fP4LMQ~7> C4 V ~~ __ ., 
C11/ - ~OMPLA~~m:::S'SI-GNATUREIG~ARDIA~;-::'-;-LITEM-

DFEH-300-02 (121991 SJWeo DATE FILED:J)~N 1:; ]. 2011,j 
DEPARTMENT OF FAIR EMPLOYMENT AND HOUSING STA 1'E OF CAUFOHNIA 
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SUSAN SAYLOR (#154592) 
1 I Acting Chief Connsel 
2 ' ALEXANDRA SELDIN (#239708) 

Staff Connsel 
3 DEPARTMENT OF FAIR EMPLUYMENT 

AND HOUSING 
4 2218 Kausen Drive, Suite 100 

Elk Grove, CA 95758 
5 Telephone No.: (619) 645-2575 

Facsimile: (619) 645-3170 

6 

7 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

* CO\JI'!, PAPER 
St6!" '" Cfllilomio 
Std. 113 Rev. S-96 
FE&H 'Automl>,,,d 

Attorneys for the Department 

BEFORE THE FAIR EMPLOYl\1ENT AND HOUSING COMMISSION 

OF THE STATE OF CALIFOR.;"lIA 

In the Matter of the Complaint of 
THE DEPARTMENT OF FAIR 
EMPLOYMENT AND HOUSING, 

vs. 

LA \V SCHOOL ADMISSION COUNCIL. 
INC., 

Respondent, 

) 

~ 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) -------------------------) 

HAMID MICHAEL HEJAZI; NICHOLAS E. » 
JONES;an~ 

) 
Complainants. ) 

----------------~ 

Case Nos. U-200910-G-0012-00-p 
U-200910-G-00l1-00-p 
U-200910-Q0003-00 

NOTICE OF CLASS ACTION 
COMPLAINT AND DIRECTOR'S 
COMPLAIJ'\'T 

(Gov. Code §§ 12960, 12961 and 12965, 
subd. Cal.) 

TO LAW SCHOOL ADMISSION COUNCIL, INC., 662 Penn Street, Box 40, Newton, 

Pennsylvania, 18940: 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that pursuant to Government Code sections 12960 and 12961, the 

Director of the DEPARTMENT OF FAIR EMPLOYMENT AND HOUSING (hereinafter "the 

Department") has determined that the cases listed below will be treated and proceed as a group or 

class complaint for all purposes, and the Director has issued the following Complaint of 

Discrimination on behalf of the group or class described beiow: 

·1· 
DFEH v. Law School Admission Council, Inc. (Hejazi, et. al.): 

Notice of Class Action Complaint 
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1 Case number U-200910-G-OOll-OO-p, filed by Complainant HAMID MICHAEL HEJAZI 

2 against Respondent LA W SCHOOL ADMISSION COUNCIL, INC. on January 19, 2010. 

3 Case number U-200910-G-0012-00-p, filed by Complainant NICHOLAS E. JONES against 

4 Respondent LAW SCHOOL ADMISSION COUNCIL, INC. on January 21, 2010. 

5 Case mnnber U-200910-Q0003-00, filed by Complainant against 

6 Respondent LAW SCHOOL ADMISSION COUNCIL, INC. on May 9, 2010. 

7 The Director's determination and issuance is based on the following: 

8 1. Complainants HAMID MICHAEL HEJAZI, NICHOLAS E. JONES and 

9 (hereinafter "Complainants") filed individual verified complaints in writing "'~th the 

10 Department on fhe dates herein indicated alleging that Respondent LAW SCHOOL ADMISSION 

11 COUNCIL, INC. (hereinafter "LSAC") engaged in unlawful practices against them which were 

12 discriminatory on the basis of disability, in violation of fhe Fair Employment and Housing Act 

13 ("FEHA"), Government Code section 12900, et. seq. and fhe Umuh Civil Rights Act, Civil Code 

14 section 51. 

15 2. 111e Department's investigation revealed that LSAC is a proper respondent for all 

16 purposes in fhis matter. 

17 3. The &'TOUp or class of which the Complainru1ts are members is comprised of all 

18 disabled individuals in the State of California who have or will request a reasonable 

19 accommodation for fhe Law School Admission Test ("LSAT"), administered by fhe LSAC, and 

20 who have or will be unlawfully denied such request fi:om January 19, 2009 to the conclusion of fhe 

21 Department's investigation offhis complaint. 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

@ 
COUIlT ?1.J>FJl 
Stllte <:>f c..llfomJs 
Std. 113 fI,w. 3·$S 
F,,&H AlrtO<l,ated 

4. There are common questions of law and fact involved which affect the parties to be 

represented and those persons similarly situated in fhat during the course of the Department's 

investigation the Complainrults provided and the Department obtained information, which, if 

proven, indicates that LSAC unlawfully denied or denies disabled individuals reasonable 

accommodations for the LSAT. Respondent disputes some of fhese allegations. The Department 

will continue the investigation to detemline the merits of these allegations. 

-2-

(Hej azi. et. aJ.): 
Notice of Class Action CornpJairrt 
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1 5. The nature of the group or class is such that proof of a single set of facts will 

2 establish the right of each member of the group to recover. 

3 

4 

6. 

7. 

5 I response to: 

6 

7 

8 

9 

I 

The Director will fairly and accurately represent the interests of the group or class. 

You may, but need not, respond to this notification in writing by submitting your 

Alexandra Seldin 
Special Investigations Unit Administrator 
Department of Fair Employment and Housing 
2218 Kausen Drive, Suite 100 
Elk Grove,CA 95758 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

DATED: July2..z. ,2010 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

@ 
COURT PAf'EIl 
Stata ~f Cnllf~<ni<l 
Std. 113 Rev, ;I-Sfi 
FE'&.j' Ault;om!ltQrl 

DEPARTMENT OF FAIR EMPLOYMENT 
AND HOUSING 

PHYLLIS W. CHENG 
Director 

~-;::;;; .~­
By: '~l~~ 

Ph}1liSW'eheng 

I 

-3- J -~~c--------DFEH v. Law School Admission Council, Inc. (H"jazi, et. a/.): 
Nonce of Class Action Complaint I 
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" iI iI PUBLIC ACCOMMOIJATION/RAlPHIGIVll COOE SEGTIOIIIS 51.11 & 54 * • * 

COMPLAINT OF OISCRlMII\JAT!ON UNGER THE 
PROVISIONS OF THE CALIFORiIllAFAIR EMPLOYMENT 
I\i\l[) HOUSlmG ACT WHICH INCORPORATES THE UNRUH CIVIL 

DFEH It U 201112 H-'0007-(jO-p 

RIGHTS ACT, THE RALPH CIVil RIGHTS ACT ANO CIVil CODE SECTIOfJS 51.5 ANO 54 
COMPLAiNANT'S NAME<S)'(indiciitB Mr, or Ms., if individual) 

JOHNSO ALEX (MR.) 

1447 La Linda Drive 760-736-0119 

S<ln Marcos, CA 92078 San Diego 073 
NAMEDISTHE PERsoff1luSINESS ESTAI3L1SHfvlENT, PUBLIGACCOM~tlO[)AT!oN OR OTHER ENTITY THAT-'--­
DiSCI~IMINATED AGAINST ME: 

Law School Admissions Council, Inc. (LASC) 
AcioRESS-----·---- :==..:.:.:=-'::::..:::=---------~T;CEl"'E."PH;:;;'O"'N:;-;E,.,N"U"M"'B"ER;;-, "IIN"C"L'U'D"'r",: r-".R;c,E7/,"C"O,"'DE""-

662 Penn Street 215·968-1001 
CITY 1ST ATE/ZIP ~'-~-""---~-~-cODNf"y--·- CQU"'Nn'Tvyrc"O""o{-

Newtown, PA 18940 Out of State 000 
(~'A'~jSioFDiSCR~r(;11NAT10~)8-A-SED-0i~(CH EC K 'App'FtO'p"f11 ATE BOX[ESTI--·-"-~"-~----·-·~----~----'·---"-··-"""----~·---

C) pr,CE []SEX 00J$ABIUTY 0 R-EUG1QN 0 NATIONAL ORIGINIANCESTHY 0 SEXUAL OFiltNTATION 
[I COLOR 0 f,GE 0 MARiTAL STATUS 0 OTHER: ~SPECWYI 
-i~)A-::i:E-'M'6'ST'Fi'EC ENT OR cONnr::iC!ING"Di SCR-I~MINA'r\ON"-------"-":"""""''''''====''''''''-'''''''-"'''~= -'===--~:rYPE"-of-COM"pttill~T-="=-="---

,~~?_~.:'''::lAC~::::.~:::~~~.~:.~:,.~l Y0m> September ~.? I 29~_~ ________ , "~ ___ ~ ... ~L~~ _____ .. _ .... _" .... _ 
THE PAF<IICULARS ARE: 

L On or aboUt 9/17/10 I was denied the reasonable accomrnodaHon needed to take the LSAT (Law School, 
Admissions Test). 

!L No reason wa's 91ven for partial denia~ of my reasonable accomn'lodatlon and the gra:'!ting of 
incloequate/lneffective accommodatron s, 

111. j believe \ was denied reasonable accorrt!"Ywd-a-tion, which is r.ecessary due to my disability (Quedriplegii','1), 
vvhid'i is a violation of Government Code, Section 12948. The GCivernment Code incorporates Soction 51 
of the Clvil Code, My belief is based on the following: 

A. On or about 8/5/'10 I advised the Accol'nmodated Testin~J section of my medical need for 
acco!l1nlodation in the form of using a computer for all' sections of the tese 120 extra minutes on 
eaGh section ot the test, alternate to' scantron answer sheet, use of amanuensis (to turn po_ges), 

additi,onai rest period and breaks, 1 also provided supporting medical documentation to confirm the-
accot'nmodations were rnedi-calfy necessary, 

8. On or about 9/17/10 I was' notified that part of my requested accommodation was being denied. The 
accommodations, that were granted were inadequate and ineffective, 

iV, \ am making this cornplaint on behalf of myself-and aU other disabled indIviduals who have been, are now, 
or will in the -fUture be similarly aggrieved, 

Typed <Inti mailed for siqrwtlJff! on Aljg~~ 23, 2Q.::U"--___ ... ____ ._~ ___ '" __ . ______ '" _____ ~~._,_~~_._ .. , __ _;__ ____ _ 

!d~~~-re under penalty of perjury under the laws of the Stato of Ca!lfomfa that the foregoing is twe -and com:(!t 01 my own 
knowledge except as to matters stated on my information and belie-f, and as'to those matters! believe i1. to be true. 

City 

o i:EH .. 30Q-02 {'12!99) B~'PhlD 

DEPARTMENT OF FAIR EMPLOYMENT AND HOUSiNG 
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.... - .. PUBLIC ACGOMMOr 'TiON/RAlPH/CIVll CODE sr-TIONS 51.5 & 54 * * * 

COMPLAINT OF OISCRIMINATION UNDER THE DFEH # U 201112 H-0008-00-p 

PROVISIONS OF THE CALIFORNIA FAIR EMPLOYMENT 
AND HOUSING ACT WHICH INCORPORATES THE UNRUH CIVil 
RIGHTS ACT, THE RALPH CIVIL RIGHTS ACT AND CIIIIL CODE SECTIONS 51.5 AND 54 

COUNTY CODE 

San 073 
ESTABLISHMENT, PUBLIC ACCOMMODATION OR OTHER ENTITY THAT 

DISCRIMINATED AGAINST ME: 

Law School Admissions Council, Inc. (LASC) 
A-OoRESS -----------------.. -.-.----- ._-- TeLEPHONE NUMBER (INCLUDE AHEA CODE) 

662 Penn Street 
CiTY ISTATE/ZiP COUNTY 

Newtown, PA 18940 Out of State 
"CAUSE OF DISCA1MINATION-BASED ON {CHECK APPROPRiATE'''''B-=-OX'''IE''''S''"II' 
DRACE osc:x &:1 DISABILITY 0 RELIGION 0 NATIONAL OR1GIN/ANCESTRY 

215-968-1001 
COUNTY CODE 

000 

o SEXUAL ORIENTATION 
o COLOR 0 AGE 0 MARITAL STATUS 0 OTHER [SPE~FYI __ .========= 
DATE Mosr'RfcENT OR -CONTINUING DlSCRIMINA'TION TYPE. OF COMPLAINT, 

TOOK PLACE Imonth. dey. and yaml October 31,_ 20 22 __ ~ __________ ~ ____ ... _ Unruh 
[HE PA""RT1CULARS-AI'iE: 

On or about 10/31/2010 I was denied the reasonable accommodation of adequate additional time to 
take the LSAT (Law School Admissions Test) and adequate break periods. 

Ii. No reason vvas given for partial denial of my reasonable accommodation. 

[II. [ believe I was denied reasonable accommodation in the form of additional test taking time and break 
periods, which is necessary due to nw disabilities (ADD [Attention Deficit Disorder), Lemlerrs's 
Syndrome with Brain edema resulting in brain processing speed impairment), which is a violation of 
Government Code, Section 12948. The Government Code incorporates Section 51 of tr18 Civii Code. 
My belief is based on the following: 

A. On or about early 10/2010 I advised the Accommodated Testing section of my medical need for 
additional test taking tIme and break p8rlods. ! also provided supporting rr.edicnl documentation. 

B. On or about 10/31/10 I was notified that my requested accommodation was being denied. I was 
granted in sufficient additional time to take test sections. [was not granted sufficient break period 
to administer vital medication. 

IV. I am making this complaint on behalf of myself and a[1 other disabled individuals who have been, are 
now, or will in the future be similarly aggrieved. 

lyped and mailed for signature on August 22., 2011 , __ .. ____________ ~-__ -

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of ! foregoing is true and correct of mv own 
knowledge except as to mattsrs stated on my information and matters' believe It to b(;:1: true, 

Dated ..J5? &J02U"-LI-II-' _ 

At rYl:y'cLv tfij'& C:",,-'fi,---
City 

DFEH-300-02 (121991 B:PND 
DEPARTMENT OF FAIR EMPLOYMENT AND HOUSING 

COMPLAINANT'S 

DATE FILED: 
CALIFORNIA 
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* * * PUBLIC ACCOMMOI){ ION/RAlPH/CIVll CODE SEC lONS 51.5 & 54" " * 

COMPLA!NT OF DISCRIMINATION UNDER HIE DFEH # U 20 1112 H-OO 13-00-p 

PROVISIONS OF THE CALIFORNIA FAIR EMPLOYMENT 
AIUD HOUSING ACT WHICH INCORPORATES THE UNRUH CIVil 
!l!GHTS ACT, THE RALPH CIVil flIGHTS ACT AND CIVil COllE SECTIONS 51.5 I\I\ID . ..:.5..:..4 _____ _ 
COMPLA1NANT'S NAME(S) {indicats Mr. or lvis., if individual) \ Co 

J::1 EN N ~S S EY -S EVERSO~E_~.I~A B E:rJ:.lJ~_~). ___ . _____ . __ ._-: .. .J?3- .1£ (0 -::r.::: ~-'i S~:=I 
ADDRESS TELEPHONE NUMBER (INCLUDE. t'\REA CODD 

1067 Oak Street xxx-xxx·xxxx 

San Francisco, CA 92101 San Francisco 075 
NAMEDISTHE PER'SON;-BUSINESS ESTABLISHMENT, PUBLIC ACCDMMOi'iitToN DR OTHER ENTITY THAf--...... 
DISCRIMINATED AGAINST ME: 

I .. <lw School Admissions Council, Inc. (LSP,C) 
ADDFi.ESS --.---~"--~~ =:.:...:..:..c.------------T"'E"'LE"'piToi\fENuM8En (iNCLUDE AnEA CODEI 

662 Penn Street 215-968-1001 
<':ITY/STATE/ZIP COUNTY COUNTY CODE 

Newtown, PA 1894-0 Out of State 000 
Cf~~liSEOFDi'scRiMIN'A T[O N BASED ON U:HE-C I( APPRO PRI A TE -BOX[ESJI---~'--~----~'-" ,---~--,-----~---~-"'------"-. 

DRACE OSEX 0 DISABll1TY 0 RELiGION 0 NATIONAL OR1G1N/ANCESTR'f. 0 SEXUAL ORIENTATION 
CJ COLOR 0 AGE 0 MARtIAL STATUS 0 OTHER (SPECIFY) 
-ElATE MOST FiEGENT OR CONTINUING DISCRIMINATION l'"YPE OF COMPLAINT 

TOOK .P.':A::EJ~;?~.'i:::. day.:.!.~d va,,) May 10, 2011 ._._ ..... _. _________ .... ____ ._.... Unruil 
THE PARTICULARS ARE: " '" . 

I. From on or about 4/29/11 I was denied the reaso.nableaccommodation of adequate additional time to 
take the LSAT (Law School Admissions Test), 

II. No reason was given for denial of my reasonable accommodation, 

III. I believe I was denied reasonable accommodation in the form of additional test taking time, which is 
necessary due to my disabilities (Anxiety, Processing Disorder, Learning Disorder, Attention Deficit­
Hyperactivity Disorder [ADHDII, which is a violation of Government Code, Section 12948, The 
Government Code incorporates Section 51 of the Civil Code, My belief is based on the following: 

A. On or about 4/27/11 I advised the Accommodated Testing section of my medical need for 
additional test taking tilne as VI/elf additional breaks in betwBen test sections. j aiso provided 
supporting medical documentation, 

B, On or about 4/29/11 and again 5/10111 I was notified that my requested accommodation was 
being denied, 

IV. I al11 making this complaint on behalf of myself and all other disabled individuals who have been, are 
now, or will in the future be similarly aggrieved, 

lypesL~nd moiled for signature on September 14, 2011. .---"~--,--"'~--,--.--."-.~---.------~.--~.---------.-
I declare under penalty 01 perjury under the laws of the State of Califomra that the foregoing is true and correct of my own 
knowledge except as to matter,s stated on my information and bcliet and as to ttlOS!) matters I believe it to be true. 

Dated 

At 

OFEH-300·02 (12/991 B:PND 
DEPARTMENT OF FAIR EMPLOYMENT AND HOUSING 
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* * * PUBLIC AGCOMIV lJATION/RAlPHICIVIL cm:Jf "'l~TlONS 51.5 & 54 * <. *-

COMPLAINT OF DISCRIMINATION UNDER THE 
PHOVISIOIIIS OF THE CAlifORNIA FAIR EMPLOYMENT 

U 201112 H-OOI8-00-p 
DFEH # 

AND HOUSING ACT WHICH INCORPORATES THE UNRUH CIVil 
fliGHTS ACT. THE RALPH CIVil RIGHTS ACT AND CIVIL CODE SECTIONS 51.5 AND 54 
COhllPCAINANT'S NAME{Sl' (indicate Mr. or Ms., if individual) 

LEE, CAROLINE FAVROT (MS.) 
ADDRESS .....c. ___________ ~____ .,,~--- TEl~"pi-10NENlTR,1BER-(TN·ClUOE AREA 6JOEI-~--

676 Alcatraz Avenue 510-655-1758 ---"_._-_._._------- - -.-,-,-----~ ---_. ---------.-,~"-.-'""".'''---. 
CITY/STATE/ZIP COUf\lTY COUNTY CODE 

Oakland, CA 94609 Alameda 001 
NAMED IS THE PERSON, BUSINESS ESYiIBUSRMENT;-PUBLIC-ACCOMMODA Tlml OR OTI-IER ENTITY THAT 
DISCHIMINATEO AGAINST ME: 

Law School Admissions Council, Inc. (LSAC) 
ADDRESS TeLEPHONE NUMBER (INCLUDE. AREI'~ CODE) 

662 Penn Street 215-968-1001 
CITY/STATE/ZIP COUNTY COUNTY CODE 

Newtown, PA 18940 Out of State 000 
CAuSE OF DISCRIMINATION BASED -orT(CHECK-APPR'OPRIA TE 'E3cxiESll---"----'--"--'"'·--------'---··--~--
DRACE CJSEX G1 D(SABILlTY 0 RELIGiON 0 NATION/.I,l ORIGINfAr\lCESTRY 0 SEXUAL ORIENT,.to,TION 
o COLOf4 0 AGE 0 MARITAL STATUS 0 OTHER (SPECIFY) 
DATE" IviOSTREcENT OR'-COI>JTINU\l«3DISCFi'iM'lNATY5'N'- -.-"."' -""=""~'''TYPE'OF CQr..t]PlA1NT 

TOOl( PI.ACE Imomh, dcy, and . .Y:'.:'.'_1 _fl:E~~il 2B,_ 2011 Unruh 
Tl·l'E' PARTICULARS ARE: ----'".--.. ,-,,-------.'----"-,. 

L From on or about 10/20'10 I was denied reasonable accommodation to take the LSAT (Law School 
Admissions Test), 

II. No adequate reason waS given for denial of my reasonable accommodation. 

III. I believe I was denied reasonable accommodation, which is necessary due to my disabilities (Learning 
Disabilities & f'rocessing Disabilities), which is a violation of Government Code, Section 12948, The 
Government Code incorporates Section 51 of the Civil Code. My belief is based on the following: 

A, On or about 10/2010 I advised the Accommodated Testing section of my medical need for 
reasonable accommodation. I also provided supporting medical documentation, 

B. Most recently on or about 4/28111 I waS notified that my requested accommodation was being 
denied. 

IV, I am making this complaint on behalf of myself and all other disabled individuals who have been, are 
now, or will in the future be similarly aggrieved, 

_:~yped_and mailed for sigl"),§l'::l~'1 Sepr~rr.:~~~~ 2q11 , ----,~-~-., ---~."'-.---c----~---~ 
! declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of Cnllfomr<l that the foregoing is true and correct of my own 
knowledge except as to matt,ers stated on my information and belief, and as to those matters [ believe It to be true, 

Dated 
C, .'\ ') a 
d2 ;p:\. 0'--...1 

At o i?,JC~ !em c{_._. __ 
City 

DFEH-300·02 112/991 B:PND 
DEPARTMENT OF FAIR EMPLOYMENT AND HOUSING 
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10/86/2011 05:19 ::LAS !::.IJP 

* * .. PUBLIC ACCOMMOIJATIONjRALPH/GIVll CODE SECTIONS SUi & 54' .. * 

GOMPlAll\lT OF OISCRlMII\lATIflN UNDER THE DFEH If _L2 o.U) 7~.Ji:-OO 2 I -OO-L 
PROVISIONS OF nlE CAUfonNIA FAIR EMPLOYMENT 
AMD HOUSING ACT WHICH INCORPORATES THE UIilRUH CIVil 
RIGHTS ACT, nlE RALPH GlllillllGHTS ACT ANO ~l\lIl GODE SECTIONS 51.5 AND 54 
c:o-MPLAINANi'S :IlAM~(S) (ir.d1cai'8 ML or Ms" ll'individul1ll 

BANKS, RAYMOND (MR.,c..) ____ . 
ADDRESS 

P. O. Box 156661 
----r~L[p~iONE""!JuM8!!R {iNCLUOEAR~-A CODE)-­

xxx~xxx"xxxx 

San Fr$l'!cisco, CA 94.115 San Francisco 075 
NAMED IS THE PERSON, BUSINESS ESTABLISHMENT, PUBLICACC'OMMOUATION OR OTHER 8ifITfVnfi\'r'" 
DISCRI~I[1l~T_ED .A_G_AI~.S:.::-,-T :;.:.ME:::.: ____ _ 
NAME(S) 

Law School Admissions Counoil, Ino. ILSAC) 
ADDRESS 

662 Penn Street 
CITY!STATE/Z[P COUNTY 

----'"'~--TE[fp1~NI:lM8Ei~ {[NCUJ DEAREA~ COD~l 

215·968·1001 

Newtown, PA 18940 Out of State 
COUI<.lTY CODS 

000 
CAUSE OF D1SCRIMl!\lATION"SASED ON (CHECK APPROPRJATE r;!OX/ES)) 
Q RACf. tJ8EX ii!'lOlSABllITY LJ RElIGfot~ 0 NATiDNAl ORIGINIANct::snw o SEXUAL ORIENTATiON 
Ci COLOR a AGt: 0 MARll'AL STATU8,=,",O=O",TI","1E,"R-,I",SP",f."-CI"(::Y'-!.I~~=~======",,,,,,==~==~ 
DATE MOST ReCENT OR~ COw,IN'iJ!NCI b!SCRJMJNATfON TY?E Of' COMPI.AINT 

TOOKPL/I\CE(month,OEYial1dVI><lr~ January 31 1 2011 Unruh 
":r-HE"-PAl1TtCULAr-lS A1i"s:~--- ,.::..."-"--'------

L On or tlbout January 2011 I was denle.d the reasonable fJcGommodation of adequr1'te additional time to 
take the LSAT (Law Schoo! Admissions Test), 

II, No reason \iiJas gIven for delilal of my ~e8sonab!e accommodation. 

Ill. ! beliE,lv$ I was del"\led reasonable accommodation in the 'form of additionar test taking time. whioh is 
MCe$SOI'Y due to my disabilities (Nerve and Muscle damage in left shoulder/arm). 
which Is a violation of Government Code, Sectk'~h '12948. The GovemrnEu'J.i Cdde it'1cr'lt'POl'tltcs Section 
51 of the Clvii Code, My belief is based on the following: 

A. On or about January 201 'I I adVised the Aocommodated Testing seci:ion of my medical need for 
additional temt tEking time, I also provided supporting medical documentation. 

8. On or about January 2011 1 was notified that my requested accommodation wa.5 being denied. 

IV. I am making this complaint on behalf of myself and a[1 other disabled individuals who have been. me 
now, or will in the future be Similarly aggrieved. 

lY.llitd Iltld m('lHl.ld for si911aturl} on AUgtJRt 26. 2011. ~--:-=--;;;--:--:;- _-:---:---::--;-
1 d~olarG under PSt1<:lJty of perjury under the laws of ~h& Stete of Ctlli{omla that ~ht'1 fOl'ag'bing \$ trua ond correct of my own 
kr,owledg:(} eXoflpt as to matters sr;l'l'ted on my !Mar!nn.tlOIl <)f!d befig.L arId as to thosa matters! bG1l0ve it to be true. 

Dated 

At 

~-tll~llr 
--" 

SeN -\""''')':01>;(,("> 

Cit" 

OF<H-300·02 112/991 ~,PND 
DP.PARiMENT OF FAlA. EM~LOYIVrF.NT ANO HOUSING 
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" * * PUBLIC ACGOMMO"'I.\TIONIRAlPHIClVll CODE ~"'I;TIONS 51.5 & 54 * " * 

GOMPUUNT 13f mSGRlIIJH\\IATlIlN UNDER THE DFEH # U 2011 I 2 H-0023-00-
PROViSiONS OF THE CAliFORNIA FAIR EMPlOYMEruT 
AND HOUS!NG ACT WHICH iNCORPORATES THE UfIIf\UH CiVIL 
RIGHTS ACT, THE RALPH CIVIl.. RIGHTS ACT AIiW CIVIL r;(IlJE SECTIONS 51.5 MUll 54 
C'OM'PlAINANT'S NAME{S) (indicate Mr. or Ms., if individu<'lO 

TALESHPOUR, GAZELLE (MS.) 
ADDRESS 

6756 Bestwood Court 
TELEPHONE NUMBl:;R (jNCLUDE AF1.EA CODE) 

xxx-xxx-xxxx 

c?1'l.n Diego, CA 92119 _. San Diego . .073 
NAMED IS THE PERSON, BUSINESS EST/.\BUSHMENT, PUBLIC ACCOMMODATION OR OTHER ENTlT;;;;y';::';m';7AT:;;;--­
DISCRIMINATED AGAINST ME: 

Law School Admissions Council, Inc. (LSAC) 
ADDRESS 

662 Penn Street 
C!TY(STATE/ZIP 

Newtown, PA 13940 
COUNTY 

Out of State 
"CAUSE-OF DISCRI MlNA TION BASE'''OC:O'''",c"cl'''C'HECK APPROPR!ATEB~OX[ESD 

TELEPHONE NUMBER (iNCLUDE AREA CODe) 

215-968-1001 
COUNTY CODE 

000 ------------------------
o RACE OS EX G?J D!SABJUTY 0 RELIGION 0 NATIONAL ORIGINiANCESTRY o SEXUAL ORIENTATiON 
[J COLOR [J AGE Cl MARlTAL STATUS [J OTHER lSPEClFYLI ~~=== 
·OATE MOST RECENT OR CONTINUING -DISCRIMINATION TYPE OF COMPLAINT 

TOOK PLACE {month, d"y, and year) Decemb_~~~910=-____________ . ___ . Unruh 
THE PART!CULARS ARE: 

I. Most recently on or about 12/611 0 I was denied the reasonable accommodation to take the LSAT 
(Law School Admissions Testl. 

II. No adequate reason was given for denial of my reasonable accommodation. 

III. I believe I was denied reasonable accommodation in the form of additional test taking time, which is 
necessary due to my disabilities (Dyslexia, ADHD, Complications due to bOlle marrow transplant), 
which is a violation of Government Code, Section 12948. The Government Code incorporates Section 
51 of the Civil Code. My belief is based on the following: 

A. On or about 2008 and again starting in 712010 I advised the Accommodated Testing section of my 
medical need for reasonable accommodations. I also provided supporting medical documentation. 

B. Most recently on or about '1216/10 I was notified that at least part of my requested 
accommodation was being denied. 

IV. I am making this. complaint on behalf of myself and all other disabled indiViduals who have been, are 
now, or will in the future be similarly aggrieved. 

,ILped and mailed for siqnature on September 30, 2011. Corrected and re-mailed October 7, 201-1. 

! declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the- foregoing is true ,and correct of my own 
Imowle-dge except as to matters statod on rny fnformatioo and belief, and as to thosa matters: t b~lieve it to be true. 

Dated Oct ..J-rh . ''21:) \ \ - , 

At 

Cltv 

DFEH·300-02 (12J991 8:PND 
DEPARTMENT OF FAIR EMPLOYMENT AND HOUSING 
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•. * * PUBLIC ACCOMfvl\:n.lATION/RAlPH/CIVll CODE St:;", nONS 51.5 & 54 * * '" 

COMPLAINT OF DISCRIMINATION UlIIDER THE DFEH # 
PROVISiONS OF THE CALIFORNIA FAIR EMPLOYMENT 
AND HOUSING ACT WHICH INCORPORATES THE UNRUH CIVil 
RIGHTS ACT, THE RALPH CIVIL RIGHTS ACT AND CIVil CODE SECTIONS 5L5 AND 54 

i i 

DISCRIMINATED AGAINST ME: 

Law School Admissions Council, Inc. (LSAC) 
ADDRESS 

662 Penn Street 
CITY 1ST ATEIZIP 

Newtown, PA 18940 
COUNTY 

Out of State 
CAUSE OF DISCRIMINATION BASED ON (CHECK APPROPRIATE 80X[ESn 

NUMBER (INCLUDE AREA CODE) 

TELEPHONE NUMBER (lNCLUDE AREA CODE) 

215-968-1001 
COUNTY CODE 

000 

CRACE OSEX 0 D!SABILITY 0 RELIGION 0 NATIONAL OFHGINJANCESTHY o SEXUAL ORIENTATION 
o COLOR 0 AGE 0 MARITAL STATUS 0 OTHER (SPECIFY) 
DATE MOST RECENT OR CONTI"r'llUING DISCRIMiNATiON 

TOOK PLACE (month, day, end year) October 211 2010 
THE PARTICULARS ARE: 

- -
TYPE OF COMPLA1NT 

Unruh 

L On or about 10121/10 I was denied the reasonable aocommodation to take the LSAT (Law Schoo! 
Admissions Test). 

II. The reason citd for denying my request for reasonable accommodation was that documentation did 
not support that my condition limited a major life activity. 

III. I believe I was denied reasonable accommodation, which is necessary due to my disabilities (Attention 
D8ficit~Hyperactivity Disorder [ADHDJ and Learning Disabilities" which is a violation of Government 
Code, Section 12948. The Government Code incorporates Section 51 of the Civil Code. My belief is 
based on the following: 

A, On cr about 812010 I advised the Accommodated Testing section of my medical need for 
reasonable accommodations. I also provided supporting medical documentation, 

S, Most recently on or about 10121i10 I was notified that my requested accommodations were being 
denied. 

IV. t am making this complaint on behalf of myself and all other disabled individuals who have been, are 
now, or will in the future be similarly aggrieved. 

Typed a~d mailed fOf signature on September 27, 20'\ 1. 
Td-;c!are under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoIng is true and correct of my own 
knowledge except as to matters stated on my information and belief, and as to those matters I believe it to be true. 

Dated O;ij 27;)21211 

COMPLAINANT'S 3IGNilI,lilJREI,(j;Uf(~it 
At S.cr' /-Isrld!. liz 

) 

CIty 
DFEH-300-02 (12/991 8:PND DATE FILED: 
DEPARTMENT OF FAin EMPLOYMENT AND HOUSING 
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COMPLAINT OF DlSCRllVIll\lATION Ul\lDER THE 
PROVISIONS Of THE CAliFORNIA FAIR EMPLOYMENT 
MJD HOUSING ACT WHICH INCORPORATES THE UNRUH CIVil 

DFEH II 
U 201112 H-0025-00-p 

BIGHTS ACT, THE RALPH CHill RIGHTS ACT AND CIVil CODE SECTIONS 51.5 AND 54 
COMPLAINANT'S NAME(S) (indicate Mr. or Ms" if indiviciusi) 

STEPHEN (MR.) 

6512 Monera Drive 310-544-2993 

Rancho Palos Verdes, CA 90275 Los Angeles 037 
NAMED IS THE PERS-6N~ BUSINESSESTABLISHMEN'CPUBLIG ACCOMMODATioN OROTHERINTITY THAf------­
DISCRIMINATED AGAINST ME: 

Law School Admissions 

215-968-1001 
COUNTY CODE 

000 

o SEXUAI_ ORiENTATION 

n. No adequate reasons were given for dertiat of my reasonable accommDdation. 

III. I believe I was denied reasonable accommodation which is necessary due to my disabilities ((Epilepsy, 
ADD [Attention Deficit Disorder] and Ger·tsmann Syndrome), which is a violation of Government Code, 
Section 12948. The Government Code incorporates Section 51 of the Civil Code. My belief is based 
on the following: 

A_ On or about 2008, 11/2010 and 12/21/10 I advised the Accommodated Testing section of my 
medical need for accornmodation_ I also provided supporting medical documentation. 

8, Most recently on or about February 2011 I was notified that my requested accommodation was 
being denied, 

IV. I am making this complaint on behalf of myself and all other disabled individuals who have been, are 
now, or will in the future be similarly aggrieved. 

Typed flnd mailed tor s!.2.notur~ on Se,pt.ember 30, 2~. __ . ___ ~~_~_~ __ ", _____ """ _____ .... "_. _._" _____ ,~. __ 

! declare under penalty of perjury t1nd~r the laws of the State of California that the foregoing is true and correct of my own 
knowledge except as to matters stated on my information and belief, and as to those matters 1 believe it to be true. 

Dated 

----_ ... ----~-------.. --
City 

DFEH-3QO-02 112/991 B:PI,D 
DEPARTMENT OF FAIR EMPLO'(MENT AND HOUSING 
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~ • " PUBLIC ACCOMMODATION/RALPH/CIVil. CODE SECTIONS 51.5 Ii 54 i> * « 

COMPLAINT Of IllSCRIMINAtlON UNDER THE 
PROVISIONS Of me CALIFORNIA FAIR EMPUIYMEIllT 
AND HtlUSllIIG ACT WHICH III!COllf'OIltlTES THE UNRUH CIVIL 

U 201112 H-0027-00-p 
DFEH II 

RIGHTS /lCt, THE RALPH CIVIL IlIUlIlS ACT AND CIVil CODE Sl;ttlONS !itS AND 54 
COMPLAINANt'S NAMt;.{SI (Jnuttttli:t.l MI', (jt MlI" i11ndlvldusU 

DECOMo-SCHMITT, RODNEY ALI::XANb~R 
At)Dt'!tss '~---1'"r,"L;EPHr!NE NUMBER \iNCLUDE MIlA CODEI 

4579 Paradise Drive xxx·xxx-xxxx 
'GiTYiSTm7ZfP-------- coUNty -----COONr-YCOD-E~ 

Tiburon, CA 94920 Marin 04 i 
NAMED IS THE PERSON, aUSINESS ESTMiUSfiMEN'f, PUBLIC ACCOMMODATION OR OTHER ENTITY THAT 
tJlSCRlM!NATW AGAINSi M~: 

Law School Admissions Council, 1,,1'1':;.0:... ("'L"'S""A"'C:L) ______ _ 
AbOS!ESS - -

662 Penn Street 
ClTYISTATEiZlP coON.iY 
Newtown, PA 18940 Out of State 000 
'cAIJSEO"P OISCRtMINATloN BASED oN (CHECK APPROPRIATE aoxtJ::SH 
d nACe OSEX JZ OlSA(;!lU'tY n !1ELiGl0N {j NA"nONAl OR!GIN/ANcr;StrW t:1 SEXUAL QR.1F.NTA nON 
o COLOR 0 AGE t:I MARITAL STATUs 0 otHER ISPEcIFY) 
bArE Most ~ECENi ot:! CONTiNU1NG D1SCA:1MtNAi!ON 

TOOK "LACE {month. d.y • .,<1 y""'1 October 25, 2010 
THE AARilctJLA'!isA:iilt;: 

~rEOF coWJ;iAWT---= 
Unruh 

I. Most reoently on or about 10/25/10 I was denied rMsonable accommodation to take the LSAT ILaw 
Schad! Admissions 'estl. 

II. LSAC stated tMt the documentatioh submitted did not support that my condition limited a major life 
O:lct'vity. 

III. I balieva I was denied reasonable accommodmion ih tho form of add~lonal test taking time, which is 
necessary d\le to my disabilities (Leaming Disubility-Ii01lding ProceSSing Problem), which is a violatloll 
oj Government Code,. Section 129413. Tne Government Code incorporates Section 51of the Civil 
Code. My boliof is based ot! the foliowltlg: 

A, On or about 9/2010 I advised tha Accommodated 'esling .eotlon of my ",,,dioal need lot 
reastlnable accommodation. I ~Iso ~I'ovid~d suppcH'ting medica! documentation. 

13. Most recently on or about 10/25/10 I was notlf;"d thllt my requested accommodation was being 
denied. 

IV. I am making this complaint Oh behalf of myseff and all othel' disabled individuals who have baen, are 
now, or willi" the ltltUt~ 00 ~ilt\ilarly aSStiHv"d. 

jypsd arid rnn!iod tor Itlptta1'UrG tih Ot';wt.4M 13, 2D11, 

DFEH-300-Q2 (12199) B:~ND 
DEPARTMENt o~ FAIR EMPLOYMENT AND I'IOUSING 

900/Z00 'd 80LH 
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, '" PUBUG ACCOIVIMOOATIONIIUIIPH/CHm COIU SECTIONS lil,E & 5/1" , * 
U 201112 H-0028-00-p 

COMPUUNT OF 01SCRlMIfilATION UNDER THE 
Pl'mVISIONS OF THE C·AUFOHNIA FAIR EMPlOYMEMT 

DI'EH II 

IU~O IWuSlrlG ACT WHIGH IN·GORPOIlATES THE UI~RU'H CIVIL 
RIGHTS ACT, THE RALPH CIVIL RiGhTS ACT AND CIVIL CODE StCTtON;; 51.5 ANn [ilj 

----------,----~~ 

14780 Fnrwell 

S~atogar CA 9''507n Santa Clan:!' " " , ,OB.5 
i~ 1\ I'll E OIS'TfiCp€RSO N: BU Sli~ESS 'Esi'JrIjCfs-fi MEWCI' U Bli C icc C OMivlOOf510NOlf"OYfitfil'NTl1'Y'ffltit 
DISCRIMINATED AGAINST ME: 

2"15·968·1 ~O'! 

000 

I. Most reccntly on or lfbout 11 J201 0 i waS" denied reasonahle a:ccbn"lmodati'on to t8k(~ t'll8 LSAT iU,w 
School Adrriils-si(')I)::, Test}. 

!1. No reason was f]ivc'f1 fr.:;r the pa-tt1:ai denial: of my fe2\'sol1abfe ac~GOITlrn-()d~Hion:. 

HI', i beIi8v:~ ! was donied' reasoil8b,le aoco"tnmodatitin which is, rmc8ss8ioY d-tJG to my' dis.sbjli.tl~;s (Ttaufll:at!C 
Brain l!'1jur'Y and Dcpres-sian/Anx:fety Disorder), whidl is a vi'oll.1:UoP of G'ovcrnmEfnt COGe, Secrior1 
'1' 2_::Y48. The Goverhnie-nt Code fncorpnrates S[:;c-t\on 5'1 of tho, Civil Code, r\lly be-lief i's based on- the 

funowing:'; 

/\, On Of a,bout "/l20iD or 81L010' I 3e)vis-sd the Accommodated Testing section of my rncdlca\' need 
for fU''i:l:3-0nabl'e accorntilod-~.rti-on. ! a-I-Go prov[-ded ,suppGicbng rhedJc;c:iI d-oGUniOnwtion, 

B. Most re-c.ently on- or about; 11120'lO [. was not-Hie.d that part o'f nly f'(:')Cju8Stod (lccornmodal'ion was 
boinq denied.-

iV. 1 am makin9 this c6mp!n-int on behai'f of mysel'f and ali other disabled indi'lkJueJs vvh,o- have been, CiJe­

noVJ, or will in, the future- bo sltn-il'arfy' aggri'evecL 

1, dhchHtl, und&r 01' perjury tJnd(:)r rho Inw's of th:!J; SUl"i:r. ot t,hat '\hG fOl'"8{j'Oll"1g 15 tr-tl'B and 01 in'l own 
\\),l'owi(jdg'l~ n).((~0pt n!1 \0 !l1<llHH"s ~i:,-HfI,(j on- my lnf'orl"l'"1'tnl-oh and h~nnL "no B-S 10 thQSEl mat HiHl ): DGP&Vt) It t'O b:a 'tri.l{L 

At 

CiF-t:1+30.0-Q2 (1 I.'/S9} 8:PNO: 
OEPARTi'!iENT Or FAIR l;.I'APLO'¥'MGl'.J'r- !d\JO HOusrNG Of CAl.fFOm'iiA 
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* *" PUBLIC ACCOMMOf''''TION/RAlPH/CIVIL CODE SF',nm~s !lUi & 54 * * * 
U 201112 H-0029-00-p 

COMPLAINT OF DISCRIMINATiON UNDER THE 
PROVISIONS OF TilE CALIfORNIA FAIR EMPLOYMENT 
AIliO HOUSING ACT WHICH II\JCORPOIlATES THE UIIIRUH CIVil 

DFEH It 

BIGHTS ACT, THE RALPH CIVil RIGHTS ACT AND CIVil CODE SECTIONS 51.5 (,1110 54 
COMPLAINANT'S i4AivlE(S) \indicate Mr. or Ms., if individuaO 

COLLINS, I(EVIN M, (MR,) 
AD ORE S5 --,------.~.-~--,,-,,-." -~·-·----···--~--"----TELEPHc5N-ENUMBER (lNCLU D E AR!~:A-E6'I)fT--

23140 Victory Blvd, 818,$46-4200 
-cl"r0s-1~rE7~----"-'-'-' '"-~-"-"'''-'---~''COUNTY -"'--'co"ul~lTCOD(-' -
Woodlond Hills, CA 91367 Los Anereles 037 

[\JAM ED-iS THEPERSON, BUSINESsRTABLISHMENfpUB1Tc7i;c-COMMOOi\ TiONOROfHER E[\JTIT(TH A1----­
DiSCRIMINATED AGAtMST ME: 

Lew School Admlssions CounCil, Inc. (LSAC) 
j~DDR'EsS-"---------·------- I ELEPHONE: NU1"'!3ER ((NCLUDE fl.fT'EA CODE)-

-===_ _ ______ --=-2.:.1 :::.5-.::.968·1 00 1 
COUNTY .- COUNTY CODE 

662 Penn Street 
c! ry ;ST A TEizTI3------'-----
Newtown, PA 18940 Out of State 

"-----'----
CAUSE OF DISCR!MINATION BASED ON (CHECK APPflOPRlATE BOXIESJ) 
CJ 1:t;,<\,CE OSEX 0" DISABILITY 0 RELIGION 0 NATIONAL ORIGIN/ANCESTRY 
o COLOR 0 AGE 0 MARITAL STATUS d OTHER (SPECIFY~ 
---,,-"--------------- - ---"=:- - -""". 

OAT.E MOST RECENT OR CONTINUING DISCRIMINATION 

March 14, 2011 

000 

o SEXUAL ORIENT!,TiON 

TYPE OF COMPLAI'N-T-=--'­
Unruh 

L On or about 1/18111 and most recently on 3114/11 I was denied reasonable accommodation to toke 

the LSAT (Law School Admissions Test), 

II. The denial on 1118/11 was allegedly due to insufficient documentatiDn, No reason was given for the 
partial denial of my requested reasonable accommodation on 3/14/1 '1. 

!II. ! believe f was denied reasonable accOInmodation which is necessary due to my disabilities (Gifted 
Learning disability: Reading Disorder and Written Expression Disorder), which is a violation of 
Government Code, Section 12948, The Government Code incorporates Section 51 of the Civil Code, 
My belief is based on the following: 

A, Beginning on or about '12/1 011 0 I advised the Accommodated Testing section of my medical need 
for reasonable accommodation. I also provided supporting medical documentation. 

B, On or about 1/18/11 I was notified that my requested accommodation was not being granted even 
thought I believe that all necessary supporting documentation had been submitted, 

C, Most recently on 3/14/11 I was notified that part of my requested accommodation was being 
denied. 

iV, I am making this complaint on behalf of myself and all other disabled individuals who have been, are 
now, or will in the future be similarly aggrieved, 

~!.:_y.P€c! 8!:~;.na(\ed for slgnatu~~_2D.g..2~gt.~1~3.2~ .. _ _ 
1 deG~are under penalty of perjury under the laws 01 the State of California that the foregoing is true and correct of my own 
knowledge except as to matto" stated on my informatwn a'2as to those matte,s I believe It to be trlle, 

Oe.ed _~r d.:3 / Jj____ _~ -~~1&fmr~ i~ ~I ~ 
I ~ ~'\t ~ COMPL 'l(d,['S SIITNATUI1E ~ tl 

At tc<>0. -- ~ IWIII 11'" jllq2'~'1 lie) I 
Cltv k,r L1 1....1..1! f- & -~ I "'- I 

DFEH-300-02112199) B'PND DA 12 FILED' I _, __ ~, ,_, ____ ,_..J I 
DEPARTMENT OF FAIR EMPLOYMENT AND HOUSING ! iJrPI Of r"IR diPLOYMENT & i$JOOlme qF CALi'ORI,IA 

L""_,~~B5F!f:~.~,,lli.2:I~0~.IS!ffiGE ~,~J 
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* " " PUBLIC ACCOMMC ... ATION/RALPHfCIVIL CODE ~_~TIONS 51.5 & 54 *' , 

COMPLAINT OF D1SGRlMII1lATIIJN UNDER THE 
PROVISIONS OF THE CAllFORl1llA FAIR EMPLOYMENT 
AND HOUSING ACT WHICH INCORPORATES THE UNRUH CIVIL 

U 201112 H-0031-00-p 
DFEH It 

BIGHTS ACT, THE RALPH CIVil RIGHTS ACT AND CIVil CODE SECTIONS 51.5 AND 5~ 
COi\JIPl.A!NANT"S NAME{S) (indicate Mr_ Or Ms., if individuul) 

lOAN, OTILIA (MS.) 

5305 Harwood Road xxx-xxx-xxxx 

San Jose, CA 95124 Santa Clara 085 
NA'MED IsTHE-P-ERS'ON, BUSINESS ESTABLISHMENT, PUBLICACCOMMOOtlTlON OR OTHER ENTITrfl·jAT-­
DISCRIMH~ATED AGAINST ME: 

Law So hoo I Ad m issions._C=--o=--u=--nc:.c:,:i::.!i '..:I.:.:nc;:c.:,. ---'.(=-LS.::c...A:..:C'c) _________ Tn=======""'===,---
ADDRESS TElEPHO(-JE NUMBER (if\IClUDE AREA CODE) 

215-968,1001 662 Penn Sveet 
C-1T'{fST ATE/Z'"IP;:;.:...::..::.:....----------------,C"'·O'"'UN""T""Y,--- COUNTY CODE 

~A~:t~·t:;~'C:~NA;I~N9~,~ED ON-ICHECK APPROPRIATE BOX[E~:Jt of StatEJ._. ___ . _____________ ..:O:cO_~_. __ .. 

o I~ACE (ISEX {)3 DiSABiLITY 0 RELIGION II NATIOhlAl ORiGIN/ANCESTRY 
i.J COLOR 0 AGE 0 MARITAL STATUS 0 OTHER (SPECiFY) ---.. ~.---~-.--.. ----.---.-----..;:.,.~=""":="-

DATE MOST RECENT Of~ CONTINUING DISCRrMINATION 

November 17, 2010 

o SEXUAL OR!ENTATION 

TYPE OF corvlPLAINT 

Unruh 

I. On or about 11/'17110 I was denied reasonable accommodmion to take the LSAT (Law School 
Admissions Testl. 

II. No reason was given for denial of my reasonable accommodation. 

III. I believe I was denied reasonable accommodation which is necessary due to my disability (Spinal Chord 
Injury--Quadriplegia), which is a violation of Govemment Code, Section 12948. The Government Code 
incorporates Section 51 of the Civil Code. My belief is based on the following: 

A. On or about 8/2010 I advised the Accommodated Testing section of my medical need for 
reasonable accommodation. I also provided supporting medicat documentation. 

B. On or about 11/17/10 I was notified that part of my requested accommodation was being denied. 

IV. I am making this complaint on behalf of myself and all other disabled individuals who have been, are 
now, or will in tl)e future be similarly aggrieved. 

! declare under penalty of perjury under the lows of the State of CaHfonlia that the foregoing is true and corroct of my own 
knowledge except as to matters stated on my information and belief, and as to those matterS 1 believe ft to be true. 

Dated 10/ 2-~ ) Ii 
- . ----~----- (j~ b 

-----~ --~ COMec3'mFd W ~~ ------

At~q I\" :5 -L~___ -------- -'C£:C;;~~~;; S SIG , T' ::~~~6J!4N2~G~~J ------
DFEH-300-02 (121991 B:PND DATE FILED \ DEPT OF fAIR EMPLOYMENT & HOUSING 
DEPARTMENT OF FAIR EMPLOYMENT AND HOUSING BAKERSFIELD DISTRIC11li:~ffiIfE OF CAliFORNIA 

------~-~--~---.----
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* *' PUBLIC AGCOMMOUATIO~JIHAlPHICIVlt CanE SECTIONS 51,5 & 54 • * * 
U 201112 H-0032-00~" DFEH # _~ ______ :.. ___ ~ __ ' 

QUAN, ANDREW IMR.) 
ADiJREs·i;--·------~~---·----~'---·---~--'-·-"'·-'·"·'-··"--·'·---·'--'l"F.CEPHONf.NuMeER {INCLUDEAAEA-CODEJ 
4023 Oak Manor COLlrt XXX-XXkXXXX 
ClrYjsTATi07.!P----'·~-··--"··--"--·" .. "'~---"·~"-------··~:;OUNTy------------·,----coTiiffiCOoe---
_f:!!L~ald~A._l,454_2 _______ . ____ i:;.!arne~_"" _____________ oo"Ooc1= __ 
NAMED IS THE PERSON, BUSINESS ESTABLISHMENT, PUBUC ACCOMMoDATION 01' OTHER ENTITY THAT 
DISCRIMINATED AGAINST ME: 
NAMtTs;-------'~"--·-----'·"-"-"--~----'·-··"-----·"'---~--.~-.-" .. ,,' .. --,-------,--'"~--,,-'" 

Law 8ch,ool Admissions Council, Inc, {LSAC} 
~ss- ==-""'-="'-'=---------'T'BfiL'?iEI·"1HONr, NUMf.H:R.(INCI.UDE_'ARSA COOG] 

662 Penn Str.eet 21:5·968.,,100.1 
CITYI5.TATE1ZIP COUN, y SGt:N7Y CODE 

NBwtovmr PA 18840 Out of St,iilt8 000 
(:~J$I?ORiTScnIMij;iATioN EiASED-5N(cHEGK(;PP~ rJoxfij,sl-, _" __ ~_k"~ ""~------.. "- •• ----.--.-

DRACE DSf.X !2f DISAllll.lTY 0 f1El.IGiON 0 Ni\110I\lA'_ or~IGIN!ANc\:S'rrr( 0 SEXUAL ORIFNTA nON 
9,.,~g~?5"_,. __ SL6.~~_¥",o""c:' .. !:::':.~£.I]:~~~§:Y;!~" __ 0 Cl'l:!HI ISP[~~I~L-"==~=-= .. "."~",,,"".,,,=",==--=_ ---==, ' ___ =,,=.~ 
DATE' ",",OST RECFNT 01' a\NTl!~UING f)fSCGIMiFIATION TYPE Of CC"I,pt.Alln 

I 

!. fAoSl rBoem!yr on or about 9113171 ! was denied {oi'lsoI18biB accommodBti'OI""l' to take the LSA r (Law 
School Admbsions Test), 

l(, No reeson was given for denial ot my request0d reasonable accomf'nodst\onr" 

III. j believe I was denied reason<Jble i3(~r;ornmothtion in 'the form ot 8dditfonal test lakir.g time, which is 

necessary' due to my disabilities: (Hypotonia, Oyr;graphla, ADHD. Visual Processing Disorder, and bnck 
injury), which is a violation of GO'/ernrnent C-odc, S0ction 12948. The Govsrnm<'m'1' Cede i'l'lcorpOraies 
Section 51 of the Civil Code. My belief is b'8sed on the follo\·ving: 

A. On or 'about 9/2011 I advis8d the I-\ccommodatcd TClstillg scction of J'ny lYledical nBed for 
r€rasonable $Gcornmoci2ffIOf1S. ! ':;l!se provided SlJppori'lng 1110(1\:-;81 dot:\Ji'nerrta!;,,!). 

e, Most recf:)-ntiV on or aIJOt!! 9/1'3/11 i w;-;s :\otifiod that my requested accornrr1'Odat-'rons vverc be';ng 
denied. 

IV, I am Making this compla'l!)t on b,{)half of myself Bnd all ether disabled individuais who (i8ve been, fire 
now, or wililn the future be .<;imilarl'l aggrieved. 

Typed ~0d,.l)"]~£U2S!:!,e.0(\ture on O(;t{)b..tr_.?L3:9...u~ _________ ~ __ .. __ .~.~ _____ . ______ .. ,_<" __ ~_,_ .. ", __ ._,,_~ ... ____ , •• _.,_ 

I dechlfa under pen~ty of pe)'jury unUM the taW's of tjt(l State of" California that the fQle90ing is trlJ€- and correct 01 Illy OWl' 
lwowledge nxr,ept os 10 maUers stated on my Informmi'ort j)nd belief, <Inc as to those mattMs I baUov(;l it to be true, 

DefIed 
I"' -; "i"' ( I tl.)-v""- .' 

City COi'\J\PLAINANT'S SIGNfi:TURE/GUARDfAN, Ao LITEM 

DfEH·30C·02 {\ 1199) B;PND 
DEPARTMENT Of fAIR EMPLOYMENT AND HOUSiNG 
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* * * PUBLIC ACCOMMm TIONIRAlPHfCIVIL CODE sr 'lIONS 51.5 & 54" * * 

COMPlAINT OF DISCRIMINATION UNDER THE DFEH # 
U 201112 H-0035-00-p 

PROVISIONS OF THE CALIFORNIA fAIR EMPLOYMENT 
MuD HOUSING Acr WHICH Jf\JCORPORATES THE Ul\JRUIl CIVil 
fliGHTS ACT, THE RALPH CIVil RIGHTS ACT ANO CIVIL CODE SECTIOruS 51.5 AND 54 
COMPLAINANT'S NAMc(S) \Indicate Mr, or 11/1S., if' individual) 

WHITI'-lEY, AUSTIN (MR,) 

1050 Miller Avenue xxx-xxx-xxxx 

Berkeley, CA 94708 Alameda 001 
I~A'NiEDTsTHEPERSOr\rBTrsiNESS~ESfABCfsWM ENT, -fUSLlC"ACCOMfv'lODA TlON O'ffOTHEF{ ENTITY THAT~-'-­
DISCRIMINATED AGAINST ME: 

CiTY lST ATE/ZIP COUNTY 

Newtown, PA 18940 Out of State 000 
----_._-.' .• '._----_ .. 

CAUSE OF DfSCRllvHNATION BASED ON (CHECK APPROPRIATE BQX[ES]I 
[J nAeE: OSEX &'I DISABIUTY 0 RELlG!ON 0 NATIONAL ORIGiN/ANCESTHY o SEXUAL ORiENTA.1'ION 
o COLOR 0 AGE 0 MARITAL STATUS DOH.,EH (SPECiFY) 

-."==~'.",," 

DATE MOST RECENT OR CONTINUING DISCFl.IMINATION TYPE OF COMPLAINT 

Unruh TOO K PLACE (month, day, and year) September 2 'I, ._2_0_1_1 __ _ 
~-,'-"-~-----------, --.-" .. -."".----,.-.-~--.-." 
THE PARTiCULARS ARE: 

I. On or about 9/21/11 
Admissions Test}. 

I was denied reasonable accommodation to take the LSAT !Law School 

11. No reason was given for denial of my reasol'lijb!e accommodation. 

III. I believe I was denied reasonable accommodation in which is necessary due to my disabilities (Spinal 
Chord Injury-·paraplogia, chronic/neuropathic pain)' which is a violation of Government Code, Section 
12948. The Government Code incorporates Section 51 of the Civil Code, My belief is based on the 
following: 

A, On or about 8/28/1 'I I advised the Accommodated Testing section of my medical need for 
reasonable accommodation. 1 also provided supporting medical documentation. 

B. On or about 9/21/11 I was notified that part of my requested accommodation was being denied. 

IV, I am making this complaint on behalf of myself and all other disabled individuals who have been, are 
now, or will in the future be similarly aggrieved. 

Typed and n:!.~i!ed ~""?Ji1nat.\}.r~~~ctober 28..;'E~_.,._. ______ . __ ._,_,,_. __ , ____ ._~ .. _" __________ ", __ _ 
! declare under ptma!ty of perjury under the laws of the State of CaHforn!a that the foregOIng is true and correct of' my own 
knowledge except as to matters stated on my information and belief, and as to those matters I believe tt to be true, 

Di:l'ted 

At 

DFFH-300-02 (12199) B:PND DATE FILED: 
OEPARTMENT OF FAIR EMPLOYMENT AND HOUSING 
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* * * P·UBUC ACCOMMOL .• TIONfRAlPHIClVll GOOE Sf ilONS 51.5 & 54 * * •. 

COMPLAINT OF DISCRIMINATION UNDER THE 
PROVISIONS OF THE CAUFORIUIA FAIR EMPlOYMEIUT 
AND HOUSING ACT WHICH INCORPORATES THE UNRUH CIVil 

DFEH II U 201I12 fl-0033-00-p 

RIGHTS ACT, THE RALPH CIVIL RIGHTS ACT AND CIVil CODE SECTIONS 51.5 AND 54 
COMPLAINANT'S NAME(S) (indicate Mr, or Ms" if individual) 

VI ELBAUM, KEVIN IMR.) 

812 Foothill Drive xxx·xxx-xxxx 

San Mateo, CA 94402 San Mateo 081 

~jAM£TlIS THE PER-SON, BUSINESSESTABLISHMEfH,PUSlicIcc'OMMODATION OR OTHER ENTITTfHf\T~'-­
DISCRIMINATED AGAINST ME: 

Law School Admissions Council, Inc. (LSAC) ----'----

CTi'Y 1ST ATE/ZIP 

Newtown, PA 18940 000 
C7\'lJSE-Oi::Dis'CRlMINA TION BASED ON (CHECK APPHOPRIATE-BOX!ES)) -"-~'~----"-----.----------------

DRACE OSEX 0 DISA81L!TY 0 RELIGION 0 NATiOhJAL Of';fGIN/ANCr:.STRY o SEXUAL ORIENTATION 
o COLOR CAGE 0 MARITAL STATUS 0 OTHER (SPEC!FY) 

-I)ATC MOST RECENT" OR CONT!NU!NG"61sC'R1MIN"AT!ON-------' :c...:~~~ 

2.:?_~~~:ACE imonlh, day, and year) _,,_~ay 12~~ ___ ",~_". _____ _ 
THE PART1CULARS ARE~ 

TYPE OF COMPLAINT 

Unruh 
------ -------

I. Most recently on or about 5112111 I was denied reasonable accommodation to take the LSAT (Law 
School Admissions Testl. 

II. No adequate reason was given for denial of my reasonable accommodation. 

III. I believe I was denied reasonable accommodation which is necessary dVe to my disabilities (Dyslexia­
Learning Disabilities), which is a violation of Government Code, Section 12948. The Government Code 
incorporates Section 51 of the Civil Code. My belief is based on the following: 

A. On or about March 2011 I advised the Accommodated Testing section of my medical n8ed for 
reasonable accommodation. I also provided supporting medical documentation. 

B. On or about 4/28111 my initial request for accommodation was denied in total. Most recently on or 
about 5112111 I was notified that part of my requested accommodation was being denied. 

IV. I am making this complaint on behalf of myself and ali other disabled individuals who have been, are 
now, or will in the future be similarly aggrieved. 

T 'IPB~"D.~i~(U"S~~'!!.8~ture_?~r:LtJQv~..PJ:~?011 < 

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State oi California that the foregoing is true and correct of my own 
knowledge exce-pt as to matters stated on my information and belief, and as to those- matters I believe it to be tru~. 

l\J\o~".c . CA -----,-----'"-'---
City 

DFEH"300-02 112/99) B,PND 
DEPARTMENT OF FAIR EMPLOYMENT AND HOUSING 
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1 CASE NAME: DFEH v. Law School Admission Coun.ciL Inc. 

2 

3 

4' 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

* (;OVRl Pf,Poil 
f,'~"'O{C.H!=i. 
$tJ 1TJ R.v, 3,% 
r~""'j A"I".~~H,I 

CASE NOS.: 

(Austin Whitney, et aL, Complainants) 

U-201112-H -0021-00-p, U·201112-H-0008·QQ-p, U-201112-H -()029-00-p, 
V·201112·H-0027-00-p, U-lOOn O-Q·0003-00-p, U-201112-H.0018-00·jl, 
U-201112-H-0028-00-p, U-201 J 12-H-0014-00-p, 
V-20ll 12-H-0013-00-p, U-2011J2-H-0031-00-p, U-20.1 H2·H-0007·00-)l, 
U-200910·G-OO n·oo-p, U-20 Il12-H-0032-00-p, U-201112-H-0025-00-p, 
U-201112-H-0023-00-p, U-201112-H-0033-00-n, and U·201112·H·0035-00-p 

RESPONDENT'S NOTICE OF 'fRANSFER OF PROCEEDlNGS TO COURT 

I am a Respondent in this matter. T elect to (nmsfer this proceeding to C0U11 in lieu of a 

hearing before the Fair Employment and Housing Commission, pursuant to Government Code 

section 12965, subdivision (0)(1). 

Dated 62-2lX:.L;;;L 
~1<le~_d ::) __ _ 
~e1ponden '/Representativels Signature 
J 

Telephone number of Respondent, or if 
represented., telephone number of Representative 

·6· 

---;D"'F"'EihLaw-S~<}100r Ad!nis;r;)~-Cow~i7, Inc. (Whitr;e'y",et;~C ·c __ • __ • __ ••• __ 

Statement to Respondent; Notice ofJmpending Hearing; and Noti<"',e to Transfer Proceedings to Court 




